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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

ELECTRONIC  APPLICATION  OF 

SOUTH  EASTERN  WATER 

ASSOCIATION  FOR  A  

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC  

CONVENIENCE  AND NECESSITY  

AND  FINANCING  OF  THE  U.S. 27  

WATER  LINE  REPLACEMENT  

PROJECT  PURSUANT TO  THE  

PROVISIONS  OF  KRS 278.020, KRS 

278.300,  AND  KAR 5:001. 
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CASE NO. 

    2025-00375 

 

 

 

   

 
 

VERIFIED APPLICATION 

Pursuant to KRS 278.020(1), KRS 278.300, and 807 KAR 5:001, South 

Eastern Water Association, Inc. (“South Eastern” or the “Association”) applies to 

the Public Service Commission (“Commission”) for an Order within 60 days of the 

date of this Application authorizing the Association to execute an Assistance 

Agreement with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (“KIA”) to borrow an 

amount not to exceed $617,823 and granting a certificate of public convenience and 

necessity (“CPCN”)  for the U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project (“U.S. 27 

Project” or the “Project”), which consists of replacing approximately 5,400 linear 

feet of existing 6-inch polyvinyl chloride (“PVC”) water line with 8-inch ductile iron 
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water line and all necessary appurtenances. In support of its Application,1 the 

Association provides the following: 

A. General Information 

1. South Eastern’s full name and address are: South Eastern Water 

Association, Inc. 6615 Highway 914 Somerset, Kentucky 42501. Its web address is: 

www.southeastenwater.net, and its electronic mail address is 

sewawater@yahoo.com.   

2. Copies of all orders, pleadings and other communications related to 

this proceeding2 should be directed to: 

 

Morris Vaughn, General Manager 

6615 Highway 914 

Somerset, KY 42501 

(606) 678-5501 

sewawater@yahoo.com.   

 

Tina C. Frederick 

Stoll Keenon Ogden, PLLC 

300 West Vine Street, Ste 2100 

Lexington, KY 40507-1801 

(859) 231-3951 

Fax: (859) 259-3517 

tina.frederick@skofirm.com 

 

 

 
 

1 To facilitate the Commission’s initial review of this Application, South Eastern has attached to this Application 

Exhibit 1, a “Filings Requirements List” that consists of four pages, lists each statutory and regulatory requirement 

for an application for a certificate of public convenience and necessity and authorization to issue evidence of 
indebtedness and identifies the exhibit or paragraph that satisfies the requirement. 

 
2 On November 16, 2025, pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 8, South Eastern notified the Commission of its 

election of the use of electronic filing procedures for this proceeding. 

mailto:tina.frederick@skofirm.com
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Damon R. Talley 

Stoll Keenon Ogden PLLC 

112 North Lincoln Boulevard 

P.O. Box 150 

Hodgenville, Kentucky  42748 

Telephone: (270) 358-3187 

Fax: (270) 358-9560 

damon.talley@skofirm.com 

 

3. South Eastern is not a for-profit corporation, limited liability company 

or limited partnership.  

4. South Eastern is a non-profit corporation (water association) organized 

and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, pursuant to KRS 

Chapter 273. 

5. South Eastern was created as a result of the merger of the following 

water associations: Barnesburg, Elihu-Rush Branch, Nelson Valley, and Tateville 

pursuant to the February 22, 1988 Order of the Commission in Case No. 9967.3 

6. South Eastern’s date of incorporation is December 17, 1993.  On that 

date the Elihu Tateville Water Association4 and the Nelson Valley Water 

Association filed Articles of Consolidation setting forth a plan of consolidation, 

which provided that the name of the merged entity would be South Eastern Water 

 
3 The Proposed Merger of Barnesburg Water Association, Bronston Water Association, Elihu-Rush Branch Water 
Association, Nelson Valley Water Association, Oak Hill Water Association, Pleasant Hill Water District, Pulaski 

County Water District No. 1, Pulaski County Water District No. 2, and Tateville Water Association, Case No. 9967 

(Ky. PSC Feb. 22, 1988). 

 
4 Following the Commission’s February 22, 1988 Order in Case No. 9967, Elihu-Rush Branch Water Association 

and Tateville Water Association merged and formed the Elihu Tateville Water Association on July 22, 1991. 

mailto:damon.talley@skofirm.com
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Association, Inc. On November 26, 1996, South Eastern Water Association and 

Barnesburg Water Association filed Articles of Merger and the merger of the four 

original water associations into one water association was complete. Attached as 

Exhibit 2 are the December 17, 1993 Articles of Consolidation and the November 

26, 1996 Articles of Merger. 

7. South Eastern is authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth 

of Kentucky and is in good standing.  Attached as Exhibit 3 is a Certificate of 

Existence dated November 16, 2025, certifying that South Eastern’s period of 

duration is perpetual, Articles of Dissolution have not been filed, the most recent 

annual report has been delivered, and as of  November 16, 2025, South Eastern is in 

good standing with the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Secretary of State. 

8. As of December 31, 2024, South Eastern provided retail water service 

to approximately 7,863 residential and 14 commercial customers in Pulaski County, 

Kentucky, as well as providing wholesale water service to the City of Burnside, 

Kentucky.5 

9. The governing body of South Eastern Water Association is its Board of 

Directors.  The present members of the Board of Directors, and their respective 

offices, are as follows:  Joe D. Crawford, President; Grant Treado, Vice President; 

 
5 Annual Report of South Eastern Water Association to the Kentucky Public Service Commission for the Year-Ended 

December 31, 2025 (“2024 Annual Report”) at 12 and 49. 

 



5 

 

Mark O. Davis, Secretary-Treasurer; Wade Bumgardner, Director; Bobby Crow, 

Director; Dennis Faulkner, Director; and Dwight Faulkner, Director.  

10. South Eastern is engaged in the distribution and sale of water.  South 

Eastern does not produce its own water, but rather purchases water from the City of 

Somerset, Kentucky.  The Association owns and operates 11 pumping stations, 11  

water storage tanks, and approximately 580 miles of water mains. 

11. South Eastern’s Board of Directors adopted a Unanimous Consent 

Resolution (“Resolution”) authorizing the Association’s General Manager to 

prepare, verify, sign, and submit this Application. A copy of the Resolution is 

attached as Exhibit 4.   

B.  The U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project 

12. Overview of the Project and Estimated Cost to Construct.  The  total 

estimated cost to construct the Project, including design, inspection, and 

contingency, is $1,105,164. A breakdown of this estimate is included on page 4 of 

Exhibit 5, the Final Engineering Report. The Project consists of replacing 

approximately 5,400 linear feet of older, leaking, 6-inch PVC water line with 8-inch 

ductile iron water line and all necessary appurtenances in order to improve service 

in the southern portion of the Association’s system.   

13. Location of the Project.  The water line to be replaced is located along 

heavily traveled  U.S. 27 in Pulaski County in the southern section of the 
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Association’s water distribution system. The water line along U.S. 27 is the main 

line supplying water south of Lake Cumberland and the City of Burnside, Kentucky. 

The U.S. 27 water line provides water to the Tateville Pump Station and serves 

approximately 2,000 existing customers. The Project area spans a length of U.S. 27 

beginning just southeast of Hayes Branch and continuing toward the south past 

Kingsford Drive to the Tateville Pump Station. A map showing the location of the 

Project and the location of the Tateville Pump Station is attached as Exhibit 6. 

Project plans, specifications, and drawings signed, sealed, and dated by an engineer 

registered in Kentucky as required by KRS 322.340 are attached as Exhibit 7. 

C. Need for Project 

14. The existing water line along U.S. 27 was installed  in the early 1970’s 

as one of the original water lines providing water to the Tateville Water Association, 

which served this area of Pulaski County prior to the mergers and consolidations that 

gave birth to South Eastern Water Association in 1993. The line is 6-inch diameter 

PVC and is deteriorating. The deterioration is leading to frequent line breaks and 

leaks. In 2024 alone, South Eastern repaired 10 line breaks in this area.  The terrain 

in the Project area is extremely rocky and is contributing to the deterioration of the 

PVC pipe. PVC pipe tends to degrade and split when it is in constant contact with 

rock. Periods of dry weather followed by wet conditions results in a shifting of the 

pipe. When the pipe is bedded in rock, as it is along U.S. 27, this results in a wearing 
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away of the pipe and causes leaks. This has been occurring frequently in the Project 

area. Equally as troubling to the management of South Eastern is the possibility that 

undiscovered leaks in this area of the system are contributing to increased water loss. 

It is very difficult to detect leaks in this area because the noise from the heavily 

traveled roadway impairs the use of listening devices. There is also no room along 

the roadway to use portable flow meters to detect the movement of unusually large 

volumes of water within the pipe.  

15. This water line plays a vital role in South Eastern’s distribution system 

because it supplies water to approximately 2,000 customers, representing one-fourth 

of the Association’s total customer count.6 The line supplies the Tateville Pump 

Station, which South Eastern is not able to operate as efficiently as possible because 

of friction losses at the suction side of the pump station at the point that the existing 

6-inch line connects to the 8-inch line at the pump station. Replacing the 6-inch PVC 

line with 8-inch ductile iron line having a higher pressure-rating will enable South 

Eastern to operate its Tateville Pump Station more efficiently. 

16. Two more pump stations and three water tanks lie within the territory 

supplied by this line. A map depicting the service area of the U. S. 27 water line is 

attached as Exhibit 8. The portion of the line to be replaced is shown in blue just 

above the marker for the Tateville Pump Station. Because this water line provides 

 
6 See 2024 Annual Report at 49. In 2024 South Eastern had 7,878 customers. 
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water to such a large area and to a significant number of customers, South Eastern 

believes it advisable to replace it before the problem with line breaks gets worse. 

D. Alternatives Considered 

17. Alternatives Considered. South Eastern and its consulting engineers, 

Kenvirons Civil and Environmental Engineers, considered three alternatives to the 

proposed Project in addition to the selected alternative. Additional information about 

these alternatives is contained in Exhibit 5, the Final Engineering Report. Two 

alternatives considered involved construction and the third did not.  

18. First Alternative. The first alternative involved breaking the project 

into phases. The northern half of the proposed Project area is more challenging from 

a constructability standpoint. The water line runs along a rock highwall and replacing 

it will involve cramped working conditions, the installation of a temporary water line 

to provide service during construction, and the need for carefully developed traffic 

control plans along heavily traveled U.S. 27.  The southern half of the Project has a 

wider construction area for safer, less cramped working conditions, will not require 

the use of a temporary water line to maintain service during construction, and 

presents fewer challenges. The southern half of the Project also contains the 

connection with the Tateville Pump Station.  

19. Because South Eastern is experiencing friction losses at the suction side 

of the pump station at the point that the existing 6-inch line connects to the 8-inch 
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line at the pump station, the Association desires to increase the size of the water line 

in the southern half of the Project area as soon as possible to more efficiently utilize 

its pump station. However, this would mean delayed installation of the northern 

portion of the line, which is more challenging to construct. South Eastern decided 

against this alternative because it reasonably expects the costs of construction, 

especially the cost to construct along a heavily traveled highway, such as U.S. 27 in 

the northern half of the Project area, to increase over time, adding to the overall final 

cost of the Project.   

20. Attached as Exhibit 9 are photographs of water line repairs being been 

made along U.S. 27. South Eastern is providing these to illustrate the water line’s 

close proximity to the roadway and the cramped nature of the area.  The first photo 

was taken following an accident in the northern section of the Project area on 

February 2, 2018. A tanker truck overturned and spilled approximately 8,000 gallons 

of gasoline. The rock highwall, which is discussed in this Application because it 

presents a constructability challenge, is visible in this photograph.  

21. Second Alternative. The second alternative considered involved re-

using the temporary bypass high density polyethylene (“HDPE”) water line that will 

be used to provide service to the northern portion of the Project area during 

construction as the permanent water line in that section of the Project. It will be 

necessary to install an above-ground HDPE water line to continue to provide water 
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service to customers along the northern area of the Project while the old line is being 

removed. This alternative involved moving the HDPE line into the ditch once the old 

6-inch PVC line is removed and using it as the permanent water line. However, this 

alternative would have interrupted service to all customers in the Tateville service 

area while the HDPE line was being relocated to the ditch. South Eastern also had 

concerns that the HDPE line might not be as durable as ductile iron in the rocky 

terrain. The unavoidable service interruption and concerns about the long-term 

durability of the HDPE line in the environment in which it would be installed led the 

Association to decide against this option.   

22. Non-Construction Alternative.  Finally, the Association considered 

continuing reactive maintenance of the 1970’s-era water line and not attempting any 

line replacement at all. This would have involved no construction but simply to 

continue to address line breaks as they occur. Given that South Eastern’s overall 

water loss crept up to 17.26 percent in 2024,  the Association’s management believes 

it to be prudent to address all sources of possible water loss.  The aging PVC water 

line along U.S. 27 is one such source of water loss. There have been a number of 

documented line breaks in the area, but even more concerning is the reasonable 

likelihood of numerous small leaks in the area that simply cannot be located due to 

noise and other factors.  



11 

 

23. Preferred Alternative.  South Eastern decided that replacing the water 

line in the Project area now, before additional breaks occur causing more service 

disruption, was the best alternative under the circumstances. Further, South Eastern 

believes that choosing more durable ductile iron pipe is a wise choice given the rocky 

terrain and the difficulty of performing repairs to line breaks along a major highway.  

The Association believes that not replacing this ageing line, which has experienced 

a number of breaks over the last few years, and which serves approximately one-

quarter of South Eastern’s total customers, when the funds are available to do so, 

would be unreasonable and not consistent with its obligation to provide adequate, 

efficient, and reasonable service.7 

       24. Contract Specifications and Plans. The signed, sealed, and dated 

 contract  specifications  are  filed  separately as  Exhibit 10.  A copy of the Plans,  

    Specifications, and Drawings for  the proposed Project signed, sealed, and dated  

    by an engineer registered in Kentucky are attached as Exhibit 7.  

25. Estimated Annual Cost to Operate.     South Eastern estimates that 

there will be a small reduction in its annual purchased power cost after placing the 

Project into service. This is because increasing the pressure-rating of the pipe leading 

into the Tateville Pump Station will allow it to operate at a more efficient capacity, 

 
7 KRS 278.030(2). 
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thereby reducing the number of hours the pump station is in operation each day by 

approximately 23 percent.   

Purchased Power Cost 

Current       $ 25,476 

Proposed       19,576 

Savings      $   5,900 

 

26. A comparison of existing and proposed operating expenses associated 

with the water line is attached to this Application as  Exhibit 11.  The “transmission 

& distribution” expenses provided in the comparison represent costs of repairing line 

breaks and leaks. It is expected that this will be reduced to “0” once the Project is 

placed into service. The existing annual operation costs are $30,976.8 The proposed 

annual operating costs are estimated to be $57,557, of which $37,981 is annual debt 

service.9  The debt service is comprised of a $1,236 annual loan servicing fee and 

$36,745 in principal and interest costs. The estimated annual cost to operate the Project 

represents an increase expense of approximately $26,581 to South Eastern.10   

27. Competition with Other Public Utilities.    The proposed Project will 

not compete with the facilities of another public utility.  There is no other water 

distribution system located in the area of the Project.  Its construction will not result in 

wasteful duplication of utility facilities or inefficient investment. 

 
8 $25,476 in Purchased Power cost + $5,500 estimated annual costs to repair line = $30,976. 

 
9 $19,576 in Purchased Power cost + $37,981 debt service = $57,557. 

 
10 $57,557 in estimated future annual operating costs - $30,976 in current annual operating costs = $26,581 post-

construction increase. 
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28. Division of Water.    The Kentucky Division of Water (“KDOW”) has 

reviewed the plans for the proposed Project and has approved them with respect to 

the sanitary features of design.  A copy of the letter in which KDOW stated its 

approval is attached to this Application as Exhibit 12. 

29.  Kentucky Department of Highways.   The Kentucky Department of 

Highways has issued South Eastern an Encroachment Permit for the Project.  It is 

attached to this Application as Exhibit 13. 

30.  Easements.     The Association will not need to obtain additional 

easements to construct the Project. 

E. Authorization to Execute Assistance Agreement 

31.  Proposed Financing.   South Eastern proposes to partially finance the 

Project with a $617,823 KIA Fund B Loan (“KIA Loan B26-002”). The remaining 

funds to construct the Project include $107,059 of Cleaner Water Program (“CWP”) 

grant funds remaining from CWP Grant 22CWW362 and $380,282 of unrestricted 

reserve funds.11 The estimated total cost to construct the Project, including 

engineering, design and inspection, and contingency, is $1,105,164, as shown on 

Table 4 on page 4 of Exhibit 5, the Final Engineering Report. 

32. KIA Loan B26-002.  To partially finance the proposed Project, South 

Eastern proposes to enter into an Assistance Agreement with KIA for KIA Loan 

 
11 See final page of Exhibit 5 for South Eastern’s Local Funds Commitment Letter provided to KIA. 
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B26-002 to borrow an amount not to exceed $617,823 from the Infrastructure 

Revolving Fund (“Fund B”).  The proposed loan will bear interest at a rate of  1.75 

percent per annum and must be repaid over a period not to exceed 20 years from the 

date of the last draw of funds.  Interest on the proposed loan will accrue from the 

time South Eastern begins drawing funds from KIA.  The proposed loan will be 

secured by a pledge of South Eastern’s revenues.  A loan servicing fee of 0.20 

percent of the outstanding loan balance will also be assessed semi-annually.  An 

amortization schedule for the proposed loan is attached to this Application as 

Exhibit 14.  Payments on the proposed loan will begin six months after funds are 

first drawn.  A copy of the KIA Conditional Commitment Letter issued November 

7, 2025 in relation to the $617,823 Fund B loan is attached as Exhibit 15.  

33. South Eastern represents that KIA Loan B26-002 is in the public 

interest and is intended to accomplish the purpose of ensuring that South Eastern 

continues to provide adequate, efficient, and reasonable service to its customers by 

upgrading an ageing and deteriorating water line, which provides service to 

approximately one fourth of the Association’s customers. This is a lawful object 

within the corporate purposes of South Eastern’s utility operations. KIA Loan B26-

002 is necessary, appropriate for, and consistent with the proper performance of the 

Association of its service to the public and will not impair its ability to perform that 

service.  
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34. Cleaner Water Program Grant 22CWW362 and Need to Expend 

Grant Funds No Later Than December 31, 2026.  South Eastern proposes to 

partially fund the Project with $107,059 of funds remaining from Cleaner Water 

Program (“CWP”) Grant 22CWW362.  KIA awarded South Eastern $457,823 in 

CWP grant funds to replace and upgrade various water lines in its distribution 

system.12  The source of the grant funds is a federal appropriation under the 

American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. These finds must be spent by December 31, 

2026, or be forfeited.  Attached as Exhibit 16 are documents from KIA concerning 

Grant 22CWW362. The documents included in Exhibit 16 are: (1) the August 28, 

2024 Conditional Supplemental Commitment Letter and (2) the executed KIA 

Grant Assistance Agreement.  South Eastern has used all of the 22CWW362 grant 

funds to replace water lines in other areas of its distribution system except the 

$107,059 remaining to be applied to this project.  

35. Financial Exhibit.  Pursuant to KAR 5:001, Section 12,  South Eastern 

states as follows:  

A.   Section 12(2)(a) Stock Authorized:  None.  South Eastern 

does not have any authorized stock; 
 

B. Section 12(2)(b) Stock Issued & Outstanding:  None. As it has 

no authorized stock, South Eastern also has no issued or outstanding 

stock; 
 

C. Section 12(2)(c) Preferred Stock Preference:  None. South 

 
12 Originally South Eastern was awarded $416,203 in grant finds, but KIA approved an increase of $41,620 in 

August 2024. The Conditional Supplemental Commitment Letter is included in Exhibit 18.  
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Eastern has no preferred stock; 
 

D. Section 12(2)(d)  Mortgages: South Eastern has five mortgages 

in effect as of the date of this Application. Each mortgage secures one 

or more notes executed by the Association and held by the United 

States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development (“RD”). Copies 

of these RD mortgages are attached as Exhibit 17;  
 

E. Section 12(2)(e)  Bonds:  South Eastern has no bonds;  

 

F. Section 12(2)(f)  Notes Outstanding: South Eastern has issued 

   

 

  

 

  

 

six notes in favor of RD and one note in favor of the Kentucky Rural  
Water  Finance  Corporation.  Rural  Water  Financing  Agency,  the 

successor to  Kentucky  Rural  Water  Finance  Corporation,  currently 

holds  this  note. Exhibit  18 sets  forth  the  current  long-term  debt  of 

South Eastern, including all notes issued by South Eastern, and which  
are still outstanding. The total amount of interest on these notes paid 
by South  Eastern during  the fiscal year-ending December  31, 2024 
was $339,748. Exhibit 18, also itemizes the amount of interest paid on  
each separate note;   

 

G. Section 12(2)(g)  Other Indebtedness:  South Eastern has no 

indebtedness other than that listed in Exhibit 18;  
 

H. Section 12(2)(h)  Dividends:  None.  South Eastern has no 

outstanding stock and therefore pays no dividends; and 
 

I. Section 12(2)(i)  Income Statement & Balance Sheet: South 

Eastern’s detailed Income Statement for the twelve (12) month period 

ending on September 30, 2025 and South Eastern’s Balance Sheet, as 

of September 30, 2025 are attached as Exhibit 19 and are incorporated 

by reference.  

 

36. Bids Sought.  Because it is not a governmental entity, South Eastern was 

not required to follow the provisions set forth in KRS Chapter 424 and publicly 

advertise for bids to construct the Project. However, South Eastern did publicly 

advertise the Project and solicit bids to construct it. 
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37. Bids Received.     The Association received five (5) bids to complete 

the U.S. 27 Project. The $919,240.14  bid of Seven Earthmovers, LLC (“Seven 

Earthmovers”) of  East Bernstadt, Kentucky was selected as the lowest and best bid.  

A copy of the bid tabulation and the Association’s engineer’s recommendation of 

award are included in Exhibit 5, the Final Engineering report. The engineer’s 

recommendation of award is on page 4 of the Final Engineering Report and the 

Certified Bid Tabulation follows as Appendix A. 

38. The proposed loan will not require South Eastern to seek an immediate 

rate adjustment. 

39. South Eastern does not propose to issue any stock or bonds.  No 

proceeds from the proposed Assistance Agreement will be used to refund any 

outstanding obligation. 

40. In the immediate past calendar year (the 12-month period ending 

December 31, 2024), South Eastern had  $5,055,941 in gross annual revenues.13 

41. Pursuant to KAR 5:001, Section 18, South Eastern hereby states as 

follows:  

A. Section 18(1)(b)  Applicant’s Property:  A general description 

of South Eastern’s water system property, together with a statement of 

the original cost, is contained in South Eastern’s Annual Report for 

2024 which is on file with the Commission.  South Eastern’s 2024 

Annual Report is incorporated by reference in this Application. 

 

 
13 See 2024 Audited Financial Statement attached as Exhibit 21. 
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B. Section 18(1)(c)  Stock, Notes or Bonds to be Issued:   South 

Eastern does not propose to issue any stock or bonds. South Eastern 

proposes to execute an Assistance Agreement (note) with KIA for KIA 

Loan B26-002 in an amount not to exceed $617,823, bearing interest 

at a rate of  1.75 percent per annum and to be repaid over a period not 

to exceed 20 years from the date of the last draw of funds. The proposed 

loan will be secured by a pledge of South Eastern’s revenues.  A 

loan servicing fee of 0.20 percent of the outstanding loan balance will 

also be assessed semi-annually. 

 

C. Section 18(1)(d)  Use of Proceeds:  As further explained in 

paragraphs 12 and 13 and set forth in Exhibit 5, the proceeds of the 

proposed KIA Loan B26-002 will be used to replace approximately 5,400 

linear feet of older, leaking, 6-inch PVC water line with 8-inch ductile 

iron water line. No portion of the proceeds will be used to refund other 

obligations.   

 

D. Section 18(1)(e)  Property to be constructed:  South Eastern 

will be constructing water distribution lines with a value of $1,105,164. 

Exhibit 5 provides a detailed description of the contemplated 

construction. 

 

E. Section 18(1)(f):  This sub-section is not applicable because no 

portion of the proposed KIA Loan B26-002 will be used to discharge 

or refund any obligation of the Association.  

 

F. Section 18(1)(g)  State Local Debt Officer Notification:  As 

South Eastern is not a water district or a Special Purpose Governmental 

Entity as defined in KRS 65A.010, this requirement is not applicable. 

 

G. Section 18(2)(a)  Financial Exhibit:  See paragraph 35 of this 

Application for South Eastern’s Financial Exhibit. 

 

J. Section 18(2)(b)  Trust Deeds or Mortgages: South Eastern 

has five mortgages in effect as of the date of this Application. Each 

mortgage secures one or more notes executed by the Association and 

held by RD. Copies of these RD mortgages are attached as Exhibit 17.  

 

H. Section 18(2)(c)  USoA Account Number: Attached as Exhibit 



19 

 

20 is a table arranged by USoA account number, which sets forth the 

book value of the water lines to be constructed with the proceeds of 

KIA Loan B26-002. 

 

 Wherefore, South Eastern Water Association, Inc. requests that the 

Commission: 

1. Place this Application at the head of the Commission’s docket, pursuant 

to KRS 278.300(2), and issue a decision in this matter within 60 days of the filing 

of this Application. 

2. Grant South Eastern a CPCN to construct the U.S. 27 Water Line 

Replacement Project. 

3. Authorize South Eastern to enter into and execute an Assistance 

Agreement with KIA to borrow a sum no greater than $617,823. 

4. Grant any and all such other relief to which South Eastern may be 

entitled. 

 

Dated:   November 25, 2025                      Respectfully submitted   

                

               /s/ Tina C. Frederick 

              Tina C. Frederick 

             Stoll Keenon Ogden PLLC 

             300 West Vine Street, Ste 2100 

             Lexington, Kentucky 40507 

             Telephone: 859-231-3951 

             Fax: (859) 253-1093 

             Tina.frederick@skofirm.com

mailto:Tina.frederick@skofirm.com
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   Damon R. Talley 

       Stoll Keenon Ogden PLLC 

112 North Lincoln Boulevard 

P.O. Box 150 

                                                                    Hodgenville, Kentucky 42748 

                                                                    Telephone: (270) 358-3187 

                                                                  Fax: (270) 358-9560 

                                                                    damon.talley@skofirm.com 

 

 Counsel for South Eastern Water     

Association

mailto:damon.talley@skofirm.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

In accordance with the Commission’s Order of July 22, 2021 in Case No. 

2020-00085 (Electronic Emergency Docket Related to the Novel Coronavirus 

COVID-19), this is to certify that the electronic filing has been transmitted to the 

Commission on November 25, 2025; and that there are currently no parties in this 

proceeding that the Commission has excused from participation by electronic means. 

 

 
 

 

/s/ Tina C. Frederick 

Tina Frederick 

 

 



VERIFICATION 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY ) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF PULASKI 

The undersigned, Morris Vaughn, being duly sworn, deposes and states that 

he is the General Manager of South Eastern Water Association, Inc., a Kentucky 

non-profit corporation and the Applicant in the above proceedings; that the Applicant 

is in good standing in the Commonwealth of Kentucky; that he has read the 

Application and has noted its contents; that the same is true and correct to the best 

of his information, knowledge, and belief 

ISid 64IS VAl/

Subscribed, sworn to, and acknowledged before me, a Notary Public in and 

for said County and State, this . 1.04-1-  day of November 2025. 

91podlli+++Alhiaboommdmillemilholbollimf
ETHAN STEPHENS 

Notary Public

4 
Commonwealth of Kentucky I

Commission Number KYNP49998
4 My Commission Expires Apr 29, 2026 
apermwroup•wwirmorowewilloft 

Notary Public 

Commission Number:  Yjf/P I-1 999 

My Commission Expires:  Apr. 

V-1 
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Filing Requirements Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

Page 1 of 2 

 

FILING REQUIREMENTS 

FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR AN APPLICATION FOR A  

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 

U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project 

2025-00375 

Source Authority Requirement Location 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(1) 
Applicant’s name, mailing address and e-mail 

address 
Page 2, Para 1 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(1) Statutory Reference – KRS 278.020 Page 1 

807 KAR 5:001, § 4(3) Signature of Applicant’s Attorney Page 19 

807 KAR 5:001, § 4(3) 

Name, Address, Telephone Number, Fax 

Number, and e-mail address of Applicant’s 

Attorney 
Page 2-3, Para 2 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(2) 

If Applicant is corporation: State and date of 

incorporation, attestation of good standing in 

state of incorporation, statement regarding 

authorization to transact business in Kentucky 

Pages 3-4, Paras 3-7, 

Page V-1  

(Following Page 19), 

Exhibit 3 

 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(3) 

If Applicant is a limited liability company: State 

and date of organization, attestation of good 

standing in state of incorporation, statement 

regarding authorization to transact business in 

Kentucky 

Page 3, Para 3 

Not Applicable 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(4) 

If the Applicant is a limited partnership: a 

certified copy of limited partnership agreement 

and all amendments or statement identifying 

prior Commission proceedings in which limited 

partnership agreement and all amendments filed 

Page 3, Para 3 

Not Applicable 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(a) 

The facts relied upon to show that the public 

convenience and necessity requires the proposed 

construction 

Pages 6-11, Paras 14-23 

 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(b) 
Copies of franchises or permits for the proposed 

construction or extension 

Page 13, Paras 28 & 29 

Exhibits 12 & 13 

Exhibits 9 and 10  

 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(c) 

A full description of the proposed location, 

route, or routes of the proposed construction or 

extension, including a description of the 

manner in which same will be constructed, and 

the names of all public utilities, corporations, or 

persons with whom the proposed construction 

or extension is likely to compete 

Page 5-6, Paras 12-13 

Page 12, Para 27 

Exhibits 5, 6, 10 



 

Filing Requirements Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Source Authority Requirement Location 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(d)(1) 

Maps to suitable scale showing the location or 

route of the proposed construction or extension, 

as well as the location to scale of like facilities 

owned by others located anywhere within the 

map area with adequate identification as to the 

ownership of the other facilities (Only one copy 

submitted pursuant to Commission order of July 

28, 2017) 

 

Exhibits 5, 6, & 10 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(d)(2) 
Plans and specifications and drawings of the 
proposed plant, equipment, and facilities 

Exhibit 7 
 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(e) 

The manner in detail in which the Applicant 

proposes to finance the proposed construction 

or extension. 

Pages 13 Paras 31-34 

Exhibits 14, 15, 16 

807 KAR 5:001, § 15(2)(f) 
An estimated annual cost of operation after 

the proposed facilities are placed into service 

Pages 11-12, Paras 25&26 

Exhibit 11 

KRS 322.340 

Engineering plans, specifications, drawings, 

plats and reports for the proposed construction 

or extension prepared by a registered engineer, 

must be signed, sealed, and dated by an engineer 

registered in Kentucky 

Pages 5&6, Paras12&13 

Page 11, Para 24 

Exhibits 5, 7, 10 

   
 



Filing Requirements Evidence of Indebtedness  

Page 1 of 2 

FILING REQUIREMENTS 

FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR AN APPLICATION FOR 

AUTHORITY TO ISSUE EVIDENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS 

 

KIA Loan B26-002  

U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project 

 

Source Authority Requirement Location 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(1) 
Applicant’s  name, mailing address and e-mail 

address 
Page 2, Para 1 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(1) Statutory Reference – KRS 278.300 Page 1 

807 KAR 5:001, § 4(3) Signature of Applicant’s Attorney Page 19 

807 KAR 5:001, § 4(3) 

Name, Address, Telephone Number, Fax 

Number, and e-mail address of Applicant’s 

Attorney 

Page 2-3, Para 2 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(2) 

If Applicant is corporation: State and date of 

incorporation, attestation of good standing in 

state of incorporation, statement regarding 

authorization to transact business in Kentucky 

Pages 3-4, Paras 3-7, 

Page V-1  

(Following Page 19), 

Exhibit 3 

 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(3) 

If  Applicant is a limited liability company: State 

and date of organization, attestation of good 

standing in state of incorporation, statement 

regarding authorization to transact business in 

Kentucky 

Page 3, Para 3 

Not Applicable 

807 KAR 5:001, § 14(4) 

If the Applicant is a limited partnership: a 

certified copy of limited partnership agreement 

and all amendments or statement identifying 

prior Commission proceedings in which limited 

partnership agreement and all amendments filed 

Page 3, Para 3 

Not Applicable 

KRS 278.300(2) 

Application is made under oath and signed on 

utility’s behalf by its president, or by a vice 

president, auditor, comptroller or other executive 

officer having knowledge of the matters set forth 

and duly designated by the utility 

Page V-1, 

(Following Page 19) 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(a) Information required by 807 KAR 5:001, § 14 See Above 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(b) 
Description of Applicant’s property and the field 

of its operation 

Page 4, Para 8 

Page 17, Para 41A 

 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(c) 
Description of amount and kinds of stock to be 

issued 
Page 18, Para 41B 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(c) 
Description of amount, terms and interest rate of 

bond or note 

Pages 13-14, Para 32 

Page 18, Para 41B 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(c) Description of how bond or note will be secured 

Page 14, Para 32 

Page 18, Para 41B 

Exhibit 15 



Filing Requirements Evidence of Indebtedness  

Page 2 of 2 

Source Authority Requirement Location 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(d) Statement of how proceeds are to be used 

Pages 5&6, Paras 12-13 

Exhibit 5 

Page 18, Para 42C 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(e) 

If proceeds will be used to acquire, construct, 

improve, or extend property: a detailed 

description of property and all contracts 

Page 1 

Pages 5&6 Paras 12-13 

Exhibits 5,10,15,16  

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(f) 
Requirements if proceeds are to refund 

outstanding obligations 

Page 18 Para 41E 

Not Applicable 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(1)(g) 
Applicant’s written notification to state local 

debt officer regarding proposed issuance 

Page 18, Para 41F 

Not Applicable 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(2)(a) 

807 KAR 5:001, § 12(1)(b) 
Financial Exhibit 

Pages 15-16, Paras 35A-35I 

Exhibits 17, 18, 19 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(2)(b) Copies of trust deeds or mortgages 
Page 16, Para 35D 

Exhibit 17 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(2)(c) If property acquired: maps and plans of property Exhibits 5 & 6 

807 KAR 5:001, § 18(2)(c) 
If property acquired: detailed estimates by 

USOA account number 

Page 18, Para 41H 

Exhibit 20 
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              1993 Articles of Consolidation & 1996 Articles of Merger 
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NAME 

SOMERSET, KENTUCKY 42502 

CITY/STATE/ZIP 

AND 

ARTICLES OF CONOLIDATION 

;51 

& 

7.27'17 
TATEVILLE WATER ASSOCIATION P.O. I:3041-E,i_2# 6 Get 

07 '33 
ADDREW,, 

art 

VALLEY WATER ASSOCIATION  P.O. BOX 910 it" .-.169,1 
NAME 

SOMERSET KENTUCKY 

CITY/STATE/ZIP 

ADDRESS 

42502 

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That we, whosu names are to subscribed. acting as 

incorporators lot the purpose of forming a non profit corporation 

under the provisions of Chapter 273 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, 

assuming and clailoing all powers, rights, privileges and immunities 

granted or permitted bodies corporation under said laws, and do 

hereby adopt the following Articles of Consolidation and set forth 

the following plan of consolidation. 

ARTICLE I 

PLAN OF CuNSOLIDATION 

Pursuant t_o KRS 74.361. 273.291 and an Order of the Public 

Service Commission of Kentucky dated February 22, 1988 in Case NO. 

9967, the boards of the directors of the corporations enumerated 

below do hereby set forth their plan of consolidation as required by 

KRS 273.281 and offirmatively state as follows: 



1. The identities of the corporations to be consolidated 

are: Elihu TatevI lle Water Association. P.O. Box 722, Somerset, 

Kentucky 42502. and Nelson Valley Water Association, P.O. Box 910. 

Somerset, Kentue'lv 42502. 

2. The name and address of the new corporation is to be 

Southeastern Wate.r Ass2ciation. P.O. Box 722. Somerset, Kentucky 

42502, 

3. Pursuant to an Order of the Public Service Commission and 

after an affirmative vote by the membership of each consolidating 

corporation. the consolidating corporations shall cease to exist and 

the new corpolatien will assume and claim all powers, rights, 

privileges and mmunities granted or permitted by law, and previously 

he la and. adopted by the consolidating corporations and subject to all 

the duties and liabil ities of a corporation organized under the 

provisions of KRS Chapter 273. 

4. The rissets and liabi lities of the consolidating 

corporations shall be merged to the extend allowed by law with the 

exception that outstanding obligations of the consolidating 

corporations which are secured by a pledge of the income and revenues 

of the systems operated by each of them shall continue to be retired 

from such money and funds as shall be colleeted from the users of 

facilities operated by such consolidated corporations in the original 

area served in accordance with the terms and provisions of KRS 

74.361(5) and the authorizing resolutions or indentures under which 

the outstanding obligations were issued, until all such obligations 

have been retired by payment. debt consolidation or re-issuance. 

5. The existing board of directors of each consolidating 

-2-



corporationa-3 shai i r1;efve on tht boal-ca ot the new corporation until 

such time as the tirst annual election of directors to be held no 

later than 120 days from the tiling of these articles. Thereafter, 

the number and terms of directors shall be governed by the provisions 

of Articles IX helein. 

6. On April 12, 1993. at a annual meeting of the members of 

Elihu Tateville Water Association, duly held in accordance with KRS 

Chapter 273 and file Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of Elihu 

Tateville Water Ar:sociation, a quorum having been present and the 

plan of consoli(lation receiving two thirds votes of those present or 

by proxy voting. the above Plan of Consolidation was duly adopted 

7. On M r . h 1 , 1993. at a annual meeting of the members of 

Nelson Valley Water Association, duly held in accordance with KRS 

Chapter 273 and the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of Nelson 

Valley Water Association, a quorum having been present and the plan 

of consolidation, receiving two thirds votes of those present or by 

proxy voting, the above Plan of Consolidation was duly adopted. 

ARTICLE II 

NAME 

The name , r this corporation shall be SOUTH EASTERN WATER 

ASSOCIATIUN INC. . 

Al TtcLE I it 

REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The registered office of the corporation shall be at 

Somerset, County of Pulaski. State of Kentucky; the registered agent 

at such address is Kenneth D. Morrow Manager 

NAME TITLE 

1851 West Hwy. nO Somerset Kentucky 42501. 

ADDRESS CITY/STATE/ZIP 

-3-



ARTICLE IV 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of said corporation shall be to establish, 

develop and operate a complete water supply. and distribution system 

by purchase, dov,ilopment, or otherwise to construct reservoirs or 

water towers. erPct pumping machinery lay water mains, pipes and 

hydrants; to furnish and sell water to members of the 

corporation.puldl io bodies and local businesses, for fire protection, 

drinking. and georal farm and domestic use and collect payment for 

rental or sale oI same and doing all things necessary, convenient and 

incidental thereto. 

ARTICLE V 

SEAL 

This corporation shall have a seal, which shall contain the 

corporate name, Kentucky. and the words "corporate seal." 

ARTICLE VI 

POWERS 

The corporation shall have all powers provided by law. 

ARTICLE VII 

MEMBERSHIP 

Persons nay become members of the corporation as provided in 

the By-Laws. 

-4-



ARTICLES VIII 

DURATION 

The corp(e-ation shal l be of perpetual duration. 

ARTICLE IX 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

I. The .1ffairs of this corporation shall be mar,agcd by a 

board of seven directors to be elected by and from 

thereof and shal l serve for three years and until their successors 

are elected. The z;ize of the Board may not be changed except by 

amendment to theue articles. At the first annual election, two 

directors shall be elected for a term of one year; _two directors 

shall be elected for a term of two years: three directors shall be 

elected for a tev In. of three years. _Thereafter, directors shall be 

elected for a tet ,i; of three years. 

2. If the office or any dire:::Loi become vacant by reason of 

death, resignati,,n. retirement, djsqualific.:tion or otherwise, except 

removal from offJ ,..'e, a majority of the remaining directors thought 

not less than a Tiorum shal l , by a majority vote, choose a successor 

who shall hold ffice until the next annual meeting of the members of 

the corporation, which Lime the members shall elect a director for 

the unexpired telm. or terms. 

3. A of the Directoi's must be present at a meeting 

to conduct the business of the corporation. 

4. Unti l the first annual election and as specified in 

Article I. paragluph 5, the following persons shall be Directors: 

-5-



NAME 

Keith Dinsmore 

Sam Davis 

Joe Richards Ii 

Earnest Stout 

V.C. Wallace 

Valando Taylor 

Leamon Colyer 

Joe Crawford 

Bobby Crow 

401 Pole Ridge Rd.. 

1466 Stout Hill 

Route 7 Box 96 

3572 Hwy. 39 

4765 Hwy. 

ADDRESS 

180 Strawberry Rd. Somerset, Ky. 

Box 84 S. Hwy. 27, Tateville, Ky. 

Somerset, Ky. 

Tateville, Ky. 

Somerset, Ky. 

Somerset, Ky. 

39 Somerset, Ky. 

777 Stilesville Rd. 

42501 

42558 

42501 

42558 

42501 

42501 

42501 

Science Hill, Ky. 42553 

3821 East Coleman Rd. Somerset, Ky. 42501 

5. The Board of Directors shall have their annual meeting 

after the annual meeting of members hereinafter provided for, at a 

time and place to be designated by the President, and will elected 

from their own number a -President, Vice-President, Secretary and 

Treasurer. 

6. The Board of Directors shall have other meetings as 

provided in the By-Laws. 

1 

ARTICLES X 

MEETINGS 

The annual meeting of the members of this corporation for 

the purpose of electing directors and transacting such other business 

as may properly came before i at such time, shall be held on the 2nd 

Monday in Apri , of each year at the time and place specified by the 

Board of Directors, notice of meeting may be by letter sent to each 

member or published in paper as per notice for special meeting. 

2. Special meetings of the members of this corporation may 

be called by the President at any time or place within the county 

upon publishing in the newspaper of -general circulation for three 

-6-



consecutive weeks. With the first issue to run not more than 35 days 

prior to the meeting and the last issue-to run not less than 10 days 

prior to the meeting, and such meeting shall be called by him at any 

time upon written demand of majority of the directors or of any ten 

(10) members and in case of his neglect or refusal to call such 

meeting, which shall be the same as though called by the President. 

If the purpose of the meeting is to amend the articles then the 

notice of meetings signed by the Secretary shall set forth the 

proposed amendment in substance. Articles may be amended by a two 

thirds vote of the members present at such meeting or voting by 

proxy. 

ARTICLE XI 

INCORPORATORS 

The names and addresses of the incorporators are: 

NAME ADDRESS 

Keith Dinsmore 180 Strawberry Rd. Somerset, Ky. 42501 

Sam Davis Box 84 S. Hwy. 27 Tateville, Ky. 42558 

Joe Richards II 401 Pole Ridge Rd. Somerset, Ky. 42501 

Earnest Stout 1466 Stout Hill, Tateville, Ky. 42558 

V.C. Wallace Route 7 Box 96 Somerset, Ky. 42501 

Joe Crawford 777 Stilesville Rd. Science Hill, Ky. 4255 

Bobby Crow 3821 East Coleman Rd, Somerset, Ky. 42501 

ARTICLES XII 

BY-LAWS 

The corporation may make and amend By--Laws at its pleasure 

through its Board of Directors. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREvF. we have hereto subscribed our names this the 

  d,ty of  /  •  

KEITH DINSMO PRESIDENT 

-4 

J E RICHARDS II ECRETARY 

STATE OF KENTUCKY, 

COUNTY OF  

/ 
day of ri 

Z.. 

before me the un(lersigned Notary Public, in and for the said County, 
• 

personally appeared 277::  and  

to me know to l';e r.he persons named in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument and ,,,-:knowledge that they executed the same as their 

voluntary act on'i deed. 

-8- 

Gi 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: 



IN WITNESS WHEKEF. we have heYeunto sulw-:Icribed our names this the 

iLiy of / 

VALANDO TAYLOR PRESIDENT 

CatG~-

370E CRAWFORD l SECRETARY 

STATE OF KENTUCKY. 
( 

COUNTY OF  

On this the day of  

before me the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County, 

personally appeat  ,and  
1 

to me know to be the persons named in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument and a,:knowledged that they executed the same as their 

voluntary act and deed. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission expires: 



SOUTHEASTERN WATER AS
P.O. BOX 722 

SOMESET, KENTUCKY 42502-0722 
(606) 670-5501 

December 15, 1993 

Secretary of State 
P.Q. Box 1150 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-1150 

The Elihu Tateville Water Association and the 

Nelson Valley Water Association has merged by order of 

Public Service Commission into a new association 

Southeastern Water Association. 

Please find enclosed 4 orginals of our Articles of 

Consoldiation and a check in the amount of fifteen ($15) 

dollars for filing fee. 

.. /Yr-rier-Z49/1140-144ig-t4--)
Kenneth Morrow, Manager 
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ARTICLES OF MERGER OF 
SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION, INC.ateci orsti, -

AND • 
BARN.ESBURG WATER ASS►€lCIATION, INC. =.... ... : -, ,.... ,.... la 

lk-
i•-.4 -, ID

itr.,11:0 i '73 - 

:T7 

I-4 tio 

r-- T rnhis is a Plan of Merger of South Eastern Water Association, Inc.; a i5.:entinckt: 
_,, i:r -t co c...7 

non-profit corporation, and Barnesburg Water Association, Inc., a Kentucky non-!profit 

corporation, prepared pursuant to the provisions of KRS 273.287. Barnesburg Water 

.Association, Inc., is sometimes herein referred to as the "acquired corporation." South Eastern 

Water Association is sometimes hereinafter referred to as the "surviving corporation." 

Neither the surviving corporation nor acquired corporation has members entitled 

to vote of the merger. The plan of merger as contained in these articles of merger were approved 

at a meeting of the board of directors of Barnesburg Water Association, Inc., held October 14, 

1996 and the merger was approved by the Board of Directors of South Eastern Water 

Association, Inc., at a board of directors meeting held on October 14, 1996. The plan received 

the unanimous vote of the directors of both corporations in attendance at the meeting and a 

quorum of each board was present at the respective meetings. 

A. THE PLAN OF MERGER: 

1. Names: The names of the corporations proposing to be merged are 

South Eastern Water Association, Inc. and Barnesburg Water Association, Inc. Barnesburg 

Water Association, Inc., the acquired corporation, proposes to merge into South Eastern Water 

Association, Inc., the surviving corporation. 



B. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

The terms and conditions of the proposed merger and the mode of carrying it into 

effect are as follows: 

1. The acquired corporation► shall merge into the surviving corporation in a 

manner and with the effect provided by the statutes of Kentucky. 

2. The merger shall be effective as of the date of filing of the Articles of 

Merger with the Kentucky Secretary of State. 

3. On the effective date, the acquired corporation shall merge into the 

surviving corporation, the separate corporate existence of the acquired corporation shall cease, 

and South Eastern Water Association, Inc., shall continue as the surviving corporation. The 

address of the surviving corporation of the South Eastern Water Association, Inc., 147 East 

Somerset Church Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503. 

4. The surviving corporation shall assume all powers, rights, privileges and 

inununities granted or permitted by law, previously held and adopted by the acquired corporation 

and subject to the duties and liabilities of the corporation organized under the provisions of IRS 

Chapter 273. 

5. The assets and liabilities of the acquired corporation shall be merge to the 

extent allowed by law, with the exception that outstanding obligations of the acquired corporation 

and the surviving corporation shall continue to be retired from such money and funds as shall be 

collected from the facilities operated by each such corporation in the original area served in 

accordance with the terms and provisions of KILS 74.361(5) as made applicable by KR.S 

74.361(9) and the authorizing resolution or indenture under which the outstanding obligations 

E_.AW7161146iP.V1PDOCSCORPSOUTIMRIWPD 



were issued, until all of the obligations had been retired by payment, debt consolidation or 

reissuance. 

6. The existing Board of Directors of South Eastern Water Association, Inc., 

along with two (2) directors of Barnesburg Water Association, Inc., being the president and vice 

president, shall serve on the board of the surviving corporation until such time as the annual 

election of directors to be held no more than two hundred (200) days ftom the filing of these 

articles. Thereafter, the number and term of the directors shall be governed by the provisions of 

Article VIII of the bylaws upon proper notice as indicated in the bylaws. The bylaws of South 

Eastern Water Association, Inc. shall be amended accordingly and said amended bylaws shall be 

the bylaws of the surviving corporation. 

C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Until the first annual election of the board of directors as specified herein, the 

following persons shall serve as directors: 

Joe Richards, Sr., 

Sam Davis, 

Ernest Stout, 

Joe Richards, II, 

Virgil C. Wallace, 

Joe Crawford, 

Bobbie Crowe, 

Harvey Phelps, 

Wade Bumgardner, 

3735 Rush Branch Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42501 

P. O. Box 320, Tateville, Kentucky 425S 

230 Stout Hill, Burnside, Kentucky 42519 

401 Poleridge Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503 

2780 Rush Branch Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503 

751 Stylesville Road, Science Hill, Kentucky 42553 

209 E. Coleman Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503 

1271 Old Mt. Vernon Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503 

861 Old Mt. Vernon Road, Somerset, Kentucky 42503 

EAWPWD460WRIOCSCORIASOUMAR2.9/FD 



Done under our hands on this the 14 day of October, 1996. 

BARNESBURG WATER ASSOCIATION, INC. 

BY:  
`Harvey PbeIg Piresid 

SOUTH TERN W ER OCIATIION, INC. 

BY: 
'chards, Jresident 
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                       Certificate of Existence  
 

 



Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Michael G. Adams, Secretary of State 

Michael G. Adams 
Secretary of State 

P. O. Box 718 
Franktort, KY 40602-0/18 

(502) 564-3490 
http://www.sos.ky.gov 

%.0GI III l‘..CILV VI 

Authentication number: 350887 
Visit https://web.sos.ky.gov/ftshow/certvalidate.aspx to authenticate this certificate. 

I, Michael G. Adams, Secretary of State of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do 
hereby certify that according to the records in the Office of the Secretary of State, 

SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION INC. 

SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION INC. is a corporation duly incorporated and 
existing under KRS Chapter 14A and KRS Chapter 273, whose date of incorporation is 
December 17, 1993 and whose period of duration is perpetual. 

I further certify that all fees and penalties owed to the Secretary of State have been 
paid; that Articles of Dissolution have not been filed; and that the most recent annual 
report required by KRS 14A.6-010 has been delivered to the Secretary of State. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal 
at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 16th day of November, 2025, in the 234th year of the 
Commonwealth. 

• 

• 

Michael G. Adams 
Secretary of State 

Commonwealth of Kentucky 
350887/0324021 
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UNANIMOUS CONSENT RESOLUTION 
OF 

SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION, INC. 

* * * * * * * * 

THE UNDERSIGNED, being the President and Chairman of the Board of Directors for 
South Eastern Water Association, Inc., (the "Company"), do hereby take the following actions by 
this writing and hereby consent to the adoption of the following resolutions, to-wit: 

WHEREAS, the Company desires to take action pursuant to this writing and indicates its 
desire to do so by the signatures, below; 

WHEREAS, after due consideration and deliberation, the Company, by and through its 
Board of Directors, has unanimously voted and approved the submission of an application to the 
Public Service Commission (PSC) for financing approval and a Certificate of Public Convenience 
and Necessity (CPCN) to construct the U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project; 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

That Morris Vaughn, as General Manager of the Company, is hereby granted the authority 
to prepare, verify, sign, and submit an application to the PSC for financing approval and a CPCN 
to construct the U.S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project and to otherwise 
acknowledge and consent to the matters set forth in this Resolution; 

That Morris Vaughn, as General Manager of the Company, is hereby authorized and 
empowered to sign, execute, and deliver, on behalf of the Company, any and all documents, 
including but not limited to application for financing approval and a CPCN, and any other 
documents necessary to fulfill the transactions contemplated by this Resolution and to take any 
and all other actions necessary and convenient to give effect to this Resolution. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution of South Eastern Water Association, Inc., has 
been executed by Officers of the Company effective as of November  /ri, 2025. 

PRESIDENT and 
CHAIRMAN OF BO OF DIRECTORS: IZZE 

42-e 
D. CRA FO 

SECRET Y/TREASURE • 

af ` 
ARK 'DAVIS 
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1. INTRODUCTION 

Southeastern Water Association (SWA) made applications for financial assistance to 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority through their Fund B loan program, in conjunction with 
Cleaner Water Program Grant funds and local funds for the US 27 Waterline 
Replacement project. This project will consist of the replacement of 5,400 linear foot (L.F.) 
of Pxioing R" PVr- v\./ tP,r!inP, with R" inr-ig I IR 97 and all nr,rinccarki

appurtenances. 

2. NEED FOR PROJECT 

The area of the water system referenced above contributes immensely to the 
Association's water loss. The waterline has given SWA many issues in the past due to 
the weaknesses in the pipe classifications. The deteriorating waterlines will be replaced 
with higher classification pipe, 8" ductile iron rather than PVC, to keep SWA from returning 
to these areas in the future. 

The waterline along US 27 is the main artery for the entire southern portion of 
Southeastern's system south of Lake Cumberland & Burnside. It also feeds the existing 
Tateville pump station, and due to the constriction in diameter from 8" down to 6", the 
existing waterline causes tremendous friction losses on the suction side of the pump 
station. With the upgrade to an 8" waterline, the pump station will gain over 100 GPM in 
pumping capacity and allow the pumps to operate more efficiently. This area feeds nearly 
2,000 existing customers, 3 additional tanks and pump stations past the Tateville pump 
station and continues to grow as development along Lake Cumberland expands. 

3. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

After consulting with the Association and discussing multiple alternatives, there were 
three that were ultimately considered, other than the original project as described in 
Section I . ThIere .vvere tvvo technically feasible alternatives and one technicalty infeasible 
alternative considered and they are described below. 

The first alternative was to break the project into phases and acquire funding accordingly. 
The southern half of the project for a constructability standpoint is more straightforward 
due to more area for working conditions and construction, while the northern half runs 
along a rock highwall and includes temporary bypass waterlines, traffic control plans and 
cramped working conditions. Ultimately, it was decided that current pricing to construct 
the entire project will only continue to increase and this alternative was dismissed. 

The second alternative considered involved re-using the temporary bypass HDPE 
waterline as the permanent waterline. This would have required the contractor to do the 
same work as the current project; laying temporary HDPE waterline and remove existing 
PVC waterline; but instead of laying a ductile iron waterline in place of the PVC waterline, 
the HDPE temporary waterline would be relocated from above ground to the existing 
ditch. Upon further discussions between contractors and suppliers though, the 
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constructability was called into question as there would be no feasible option to move the 
temporary waterline into the ditch without interrupting water service to all customers in 
the Tateville service area. SWA also was wary about the durability of the HDPE waterline 
if this option was chosen due to the excessive amount of rock in the project area. Due to 
these factors, this alternative was also dismissed. 

ThP fin l altPrnatiyA th t rni hP rhnPrl is not tPrhrlic i in natin- hi lt is an nptinn that. 
SWA was facing. The alternative was to simply not construct the project and continue 
the current practice of repairing leaks when they occur, otherwise known as reactive 
maintenance. This has been a substantial cost for SWA due in part to both the intense 
labor needed to repair lines, as well as in the physical water losses. This option also does 
not allow the community to grow and maximize its potential. 

4. BIDS RECEIVED 

Bids for the US 27 Waterline Replacement project were opened and read aloud at 10:00 
A.M. on May 6, 2025 at the Southeastern Water Association Office. Three (3) bids were 
received with the low bidder determined based on the Total Base Bid. The low bidder was 
Seven Earthmovers, LLC of East Bernstadt, Kentucky for an amount of $919,240.14. The 
percent difference between the two lowest bids was 21.39%. Certified bid tabulations are 
contained in Appendix A. 

5. PROJECT BUDGET 

Southeastern Water Association actively pursued funding for the proposed project. Table 
1 shown below provides a summary of the funding that was secured in August 2024. 

TABLE 1 — ORIGINAL PROJECT FUNDING 

Cleaner Water Program Grant Funding (22CWW362)  457,823 
I otal Project Funds $457,823 

Table 2 on the following page outlines the project budget as outlined in the conditional 
commitment letter from the Cleaner Water Program Grant (CWP). 

TABLE 2 - ORIGINAL PROJECT BUDGET 

Budget Item 

Construction 
Engineering Fees - Design 
Engineering Fees — Inspection 
Contingency 
Total Funding Available $457,823 

Estimated 
Cost 

$345,000 
45,000 
33,300 
34,523 
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Other minor waterline projects were completed with a portion of the CWP funds above, 
which left $107,059 on hand. US 27 Waterline Replacement was then bid to determine 
the final amount of funds necessary for construction. Due to a variety of factors, SWA 
actively pursued additional funding for the proposed project. Table 3 shown on the 
following page provides a revised summary of the funding that is secured and anticipated 
as of November 2025. The Assistance Agreement and conditional commitment letter for 
the Picral VAar 9n99 11.-nPr Prngr rn nr)nt inPri in Appi-ndix R ThP 
conditional commitment letter for the KIA Fund B loan is contained in Appendix C. The 
Association also will be contributing $380,282 of their own funds from their unrestricted 
reserve funds to complete this project. 

TABLE 3 - REVISED PROJECT FUNDING 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) Fund B Loan 617,823 
Cleaner Water Program Grant Funding (22CWW362) 107,059 
Local Funds 380,282 

Total Project Funds $1,105,164 

Table 4 outlines the project budget as estimated with all funding sources included, and a 
revised budget based upon the bids as received. 

TABLE 4 - REVISED PROJECT BUDGET 

Estimated Revised 
Budget Item Cost Cost 

Construction $1,007,750 $919,240 
Engineering Fees - Design 41,000 41,000 
Engineering Fees — Inspection 53,000 53,000 
Contingency 100,775 91,924 
Total Funding Available $1,202,525 $1,105,164 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. It is recommended that the Base Project for US 27 Waterline Replacement be 
awarded to Seven Earthmovers, LLC in the amount of $919,240.14 contingent upon 
David W. Gibson being the superintendent on this project. Kenvirons has checked 
references supplied by the Contractor and with David W. Gibson being the 
superintendent on this project, Seven Earthmovers, LLC now has the experience to 
do the work with a level of quality and timeliness that will meet the expectations of the 
Association and Kenvirons. 

2. It is recommended that all funding remaining after the substantial completion of the 
original contract be utilized as set forth and described in this report. 
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APPENDIX A 

CERTIFIED BID TABULATIONS 
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KENVIRONS 
770 Wilkinson Blvd. 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Project No. 2022062 

Owner: 
Project: 
Bid Date: 

BID TABULATIONS 

Southeastern Water Association 
US 27 Waterline Replacements 
May 6, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. 

Sheet 1 of 2 

Base Bid 
Seven Earthmovers, LLC 

P.O. Box 188 
East Bernstadt, KY 40729 

SBE, Inc. 
4130 Simpson Lane 
Richmond, KY 40475 

Norris Brothers Excavating 
22 Northside Lane 

Crossville, TN 38571 
Item 
No. Item Description Unit "Duzintity Unit Cost Cost Unit Cost i p Cott Unlit Cott Cost 

1 8" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 1,545 $86.72 $133,982.40 $115.00 $177,675.00 $176.00 $271.920.00 

2 8" DI CL 350 Pipe IN/ Nitrile Gaskets LF 3,900 92.77 361,803.00 125.00 487,500.00 180.00 702,000.00 

3 6" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 40 85.60 3,424.00 200.00 8,000.00 120.00 4,800.00 

4 6" HDPE DR 11 Temporary Waterline LF 2,900 34.93 101,297.00 39.00 113,100.00 30.00 87,000.00 

5 4" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 160 98.79 15,806.40 110.00 17,600.00 155.00 24,800.00 

6 2" PE DR 9 Pipe LF 150 47.49 7,123.50 65.00 9,750.00 60.00 9,000.00 

7 3/4" HDPE DR 9 Service Line LF 500 28.24 14,120.00 59.00 29,500.00 125.00 62,500.00 

8 Bored Encasement for 8" Pipe (16" Steel) LF 115 540.26 62,129.90 575.00 66,125.00 420.00 48,300.00 

9 Bored Encasement for 2" Pipe (3" PE) LF 45 182.00 8,190.00 300.00 13,500.00 125.00 5,625.00 

10 
Open Cut Encasement for 8" Pipe (16" 
Steel) EA 190 216.02 41,043.80 175.00 33,250.00 320.00 60,800.00 

11 8" Gate Valve EA 5 3,627.04 18,135.20 5,700.00 28,500.00 2,500.00 12,500.00 

12 4" Gate Valve EA 1 2,173.01 2,173.01 3.500.00 3,500.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 

13 2" Gate Valve EA 1 1,643.46 1,643.46 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 

14 8"x8" Tapping Sleeve & Valve EA 1 9,183.34 9,183.34 7,500.00 7,500.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 

15 6" x 6" Tapping Sleeve & Valve EA 5 7,669.27 38,346.35 5,100.00 25,500.00 6,000.00 30,000.00 

16 3" Tie-In EA 1 3,829.77 3,829.77 4,300.00 4,300.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 

17 2" Tie-In EA 1 5,081.11 5,081.11 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 

18 3" Blow Off Assembly EA 2 4,887.48 9,774.96 5,800.00 11,600.00 6,000.00 12,000.00 

19 Cut & Cap Existing Waterline LS 6 3.928.69 23,572.14 2,200.00 13,200.00 4,500.00 27,000.00 

20 Meter Reconnect EA 5 4,576.16 22,880.80 2,900.00 14,500.00 1,200.00 6,000.00 

21 
Light Duty Bituminous Pavement 
Replacement LF 350 102.00 * 35,700.00 125.00 43,750.00 125.00 43,750.00 

TOTAL BASE BID * , .$9.19;2404,4 $1,115,850.00 $1,430,295.00 
.,•44 (3 I- 1-‘ '!",,/.... 

The above is a true and complete tabulation of the Bids received by Southeastern Wale.kspeiatieriAti located at 6615 KY 914, Somerset, KY 
on May 6, 2025at 10:00 AM. Local Time. , .;',,,-
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KENVIRONS 
770 Wilkinson Blvd. 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Project No. 2022062 

BID TABULATIONS 

Owner: Southeastern Water Association 
Project: US 27 Waterline Replacements 
Bid Date: May 6, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. 

Sheet 2 of 2 

Base Bid 
Weddle Enterprises, Inc. 

25 Shanes Lane 
Somerset, KY 42501 

Todd Johnson Contracting 
497 Dillehay Street 
Danville, KY 40422 

,iteiW,
,'/,

°%, . , ,p e
'l c.•,-4 in, 4dri tiii: ' ,,, 

s '  '
V ni 

, ,1, 
< On t 

 c ..2,O. , , 
',,, 4•111111 ' , 

', ' ,: 
k 0  !, 

i; 
:%,'  1 Cost ',' ;Cost 

1 8" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 1,545 $210.00 $324,450.00 $215.45 $332,870.25 

2 8" DI CL 350 Pipe w/ Nitrile Gaskets LF 3,900 238.00 928,200.00 219.63 856,557.00 

3 6" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 40 220.00 8,800.00 246.54 9,861.60 

4 6" HDPE DR 11 Temporary Waterline LF 2,900 46.50 134,850.00 26.54 76,966.00 

5 4" DI CL 350 Pipe LF 160 156.00 24,960.00 209.38 33,500.80 

6 2" PE DR 9 Pipe LF 150 22.00 3,300.00 125.55 18,832.50 

7 3/4" HDPE DR 9 Service Line LF 500 24.00 12,000.00 72.96 36,480.00 

8 Bored Encasement for 8" Pipe (16" Steel) LF 115 865.00 99,475.00 420.00 48,300.00 

9 Bored Encasement for 2" Pipe (3" PE) LF 45 100.00 4,500.00 383.33 17,249.85 

10 
Open Cut Encasement for 8" Pipe (16" 
Steel) EA 190 181.00 34,390.00 460.67 87,527.30 

11 8" Gate Valve EA 5 3,250.00 16,250.00 4,220.73 21,103.65 

12 4" Gate Valve EA 1 2,025.00 2,025.00 3,294.75 3,294.75 

13 2" Gate Valve EA 1 1,660.00 1,660.00 2,811.75 2,811.75 

14 8"x8" Tapping Sleeve & Valve EA 1 10,660.00 10,660.00 6,244.50 6,244.50 

15 6" x 6" Tapping Sleeve & Valve EA 5 9,540.00 47,700.00 4,850.70 24,253.50 

16 3" Tie-In EA 1 2,030.00 2,030.00 2,346.00 2,346.00 

17 2" Tie-In EA 1 2,170.00 2,170.00 2,604.75 2,604.75 

18 3" Blow Off Assembly EA 2 2,900.00 5,800.00 4,105.50 8,211.00 

19 Cut & Cap Existing Waterline LS 6 3,500.00 21,000.00 2,091.08 12,546.48 

20 Meter Reconnect EA 5 730.00 3,650.00 3,205.05 16,025.25 

21 
Light Duty Bituminous Pavement 
Replacement LF 350 30.00 10,500.00 300.65 105,227.50 

TOTAL BASE BID $1,698,370.00 $1,722,814.43 
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22CWW362 

GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

This Grant Assistance Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by 
and between the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (the "Authority"), a body corporate and 
politic, constituting a public corporation and governmental agency and instrumentality of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and the South Eastern Water Association Inc (the 

r•ting hPrPin thrni igh itc Aithnri7Pri offirH P, rh a prty to this Agp-Pri-nt, 
which shall be effective upon the date of signing by the Executive Director of the Authority, 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, being the 
duly and legally constituted legislature of Kentucky at its 1988 Regular Session, enacted 
House Bill 217 amending Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the "Act"), 
creating the "Kentucky Infrastructure Authority'. to serve the public purposes identified in 
the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, attached to the Governor's Office, is charged pursuant 
to Section 224A.300 of the Act with coordinating the funding and implementation of 
infrastructure projects and to this end maintains the Water Resource Information System 
(the "WRIS") a comprehensive database of community water and wastewater projects 
across Kentucky; and 

WHEREAS, House Bill 1 of the 2022 Regular Session of the Kentucky General 
Assembly approved a $250,000,000 allocation in Federal Funds for Fiscal Year 2023 from 
the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021/Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund to the 
Authority for the Drinking Water and Wastewater Grant Program, known as the Kentucky 
Cleaner Water Program (the "CWP"), a portion of which funds are the subject of this 
Agreement; and 

/ LJ C 17) C A rs.- 4-- 
4./ I I t_ Li - kJ, LI IC L-7 I al ILCC I it...)vv cu construct a project as 

described in the Grantee's Project Profile in the WRIS (the "Project") and the Authority 
has determined that the Project meets the guidelines of the Cleaner Water Program and 
the directives of the General Assembly; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Authority desire to enter into this Agreement 
which sets forth their respective duties, rights, covenants, and obligations with respect to 
the acquisition and construction of the Project and the application of the proceeds of a 
grant from the Cleaner Water Program as administered by the Authority. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the grant hereby effected, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt, mutuality and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by 
the parties hereto, the Authority and the Grantee each agree as follows: 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

All terms utilized herein shall have the same definitions and meaning as ascribed to 
them in the Act, which Act is hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference, the same 
as if set forth herein verbatim; provided, however, that those definitions utilized in the Act 
having general application are hereby modified in certain instances to apply specifically to 
the Grantee and its Project.

Act shall mean Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the 
"KRS"). 

Agreement shall mean this Grant Assistance Agreement made and entered into 
by and between the Grantee and the Authority, as authorized by the Act, providing for a 
Grant to be made to the Grantee or its approved agent, subject to approval by the 
Authority. 

Area Water Management Council shall mean the entity designated as the regional 
planning body for the respective counties within an Area Development District in Kentucky, 
which shall prepare and maintain an Area Water Management Plan, listing and prioritizing 
Project Profiles for water and wastewater projects within that region. 

Engineer(s) shall mean the professional engineer or firm of professional engineers 
properly procured in accord with KRS Chapter 45A and 2 CFR 200.317 through 2 CFR 
200.327 (where applicable), as amended, by the Grantee in connection with the Project, as 
identified in the WRIS Cleaner Water Program Database. 

Exhibit shall refer to a specific document, or to the completion of a process or 
procedure to be accomplished as a prerequisite to release of funds to the Grantee by the 
Authority. 

rstAtri 
VI QM JI !CHI II  CCU I LI IC1L pui LILJI I LJI LI IC r \CI I LUUMy ‘,..—PV V I— I UI IUJ II  C1UC Cal/CHICIUIC Ili LI IC 

Commonwealth by the American Recovery Program Act and allocated by the Kentucky 
General Assembly in its 2022 Regular Session, which shall be incrementally transferred 
under this Agreement from the Commonwealth to the Grantee through Grant Number 
22CWW362 in the principal amount of $416,203 for the purpose of defraying the costs 
incidental to the Project. 

Grantee shall mean any unit of local government, or its designated agent, as 
approved by the Authority, or any special purpose governmental entity within the 
Commonwealth eligible for funds under the CWP in accordance with the Act, now having 
been or hereafter being granted the funds for the Project; and for the purposes of this 
Agreement shall mean the Grantee identified on the front page of this Agreement. 

Project shall mean, when used generally, a water, wastewater or other 
infrastructure project authorized pursuant to the Act, and when used in specific reference 
to the Grantee's Project funded by the Authority through the CWP, it shall refer to that 
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project as described in the Grantee's Project Profile in the WRIS, which has an 8 digit 
number following the designation WX or SX. 

Project Administrator shall mean that individual designated in the Project Profile 
by that title, who has the capacity and responsibility of supervising the Project and 
coordinating the preparation of all related documentation on behalf of the Grantee with 
rPcnPrt to the Prn;Prt. 

Project Budget shall mean a list of Project expenses and funding sources, in the 
form set forth in the current Project Profile as set forth in the WRIS. 

Project Profile shall mean those specific details of the Project, presented by the 
Grantee to the respective Area Water Management Council for review and incorporation 
into the Area Water Management Plan and the WRIS. 

System shall mean the utility system owned and operated by the Grantee or the 
agent of the Grantee, as approved by the Authority, to which the Project shall become a 
part, and any revenues generated by the Project, which are used to operate and maintain 
the utility system in the typical manner of a local public utility in Kentucky. 

SECTION 2 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority covenants and agrees, conditioned upon the timely performance by the 
Grantee of its respective obligations, to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Authority shall review and approve Project related documentation provided by 
the Grantee. Once the Project is under construction, the Authority shall review 
requests for payment submitted for payment of costs of the Project. Any 
deficiencies found in said requests will be reported immediately to the Grantee. If 
LI ICI C CLIC I IL) UCIII.ICI IUICJ II I JCIILI I CLAUCJLJ VI UCIII.ICI IL,ICJ I ICIVC L.JCCI I I CJUIVCLI 

satisfactorily by the Grantee, the Authority will approve the requests and disburse 
grant funds to the Grantee in an amount not to exceed, cumulatively, the approved 
grant amount for the Project. 

B. The Authority will communicate and cooperate with the Grantee to best assist the 
Grantee in meeting its obligations set out in this Agreement. 

SECTION 3 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GRANTEE 

The Grantee covenants and agrees to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Grantee shall complete and submit executed copies of all required Exhibits to 
the Authority, in accordance with the Conditional Commitment Letter instructions. 
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B. The Grantee may consider utilizing the option for partial funding set out in Section 
6, below. Over the course of the acquisition and construction of the Project, the 
Grantee shall provide such status reports as may be requested by the Authority, 
and once the Project is under construction submit periodic requests for payment 
to the Authority accompanied by copies of invoices for costs incurred in 
accordance with the Authority's standard draw-down request format. 

C. The Grantee shall perform and/or cause to be performed all necessary acts 
consistent with all federal and state labor and procurement laws in connection with 
the planning, design, acquisition and construction of the Project, including: the 
proper procurement of land, easements and rights of way; professional services, 
including but not limited to architectural and engineering services; construction 
contractor(s) services; and the acquisition of necessary equipment and/or 
materials. 

D. The Grantee shall obtain and keep on file all required permits, licenses and 
approvals from the appropriate federal, state, and/or local governmental agencies 
prior to starting construction of the Project. 

E. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, executive 
orders, regulatory requirements, and policies relating to the planning and 
construction of the Project. 

F. The Grantee shall cooperate fully with the Authority and provide any 
documentation requested by the Authority in order to facilitate completing the 
obligations set out in this Agreement. 

G The Grantee will proceed expeditiously to complete the Project in accordance with 
the approved final engineering plans and specifications or amendments thereto, 
prepared by the Project Engineer for the Grantee, if required and as approved by 

A ; ;41, ;4. .-J I   • 
LI IC QI IU VLI ICI JLCILC QI IU ICU CI QI QIJ. CI IUICJ. QJ clpi..0 

H. The Grantee agrees that throughout the reasonable life of the infrastructure 
facilities developed under the Project it will retain ownership of, operate, and 
maintain these facilities, and all appurtenances thereto, keeping them in good and 
sound repair and good operating condition at its own expense so that the 
completed Project will continue to provide the services for which it was designed. 
Change of ownership or disposal of the Project facilities during their useful life may 
occur only with written approval of the Authority. 

I . If the Grantee is a local unit of government, city or county, and determines that it 
is in the best interest of its citizens, it may enter into a memorandum of agreement 
with a Kentucky corporation to serve as its agent for the implementation and long-
term operation and management of the Project, subject to the Agreement. The 
form and content of such a memorandum of agreement is subject to the prior 
approval of the Authority. 
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J. General Compliance with all Duties. The Grantee shall faithfully and punctually 
perform all duties with reference to the System required by the American Rescue 
Plan Act of 2021, and by the terms and provisions of the Act, and this Assistance 
Agreement. 

K. Further Covenants under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The Grantee 
shall comply with all further requirements or conditions which may arise from time 
to time in order to assure compliance with the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, 
including but not limited to the following: 

1. Records Retention. The Grantee shall provide to the Authority access to all 
records related to the Project for review in determining compliance with this 
Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations, including the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021/Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund. The 
Grantee shall retain all records, including all invoices, relating to the Project for 
five (5) years after full execution of the Certificate of Completion. 

2. Single Audit Requirements. Grantees that expend more than $750,000 in 
Federal awards during their fiscal year will be subject to an audit under the 
Single Audit Act and its implementing regulation at 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F 
regarding audit requirements. Grantees may also refer to the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplements for audits of federal 
funds and related guidance and the Federal Audit Clearinghouse to see 
examples and single audit submissions. 

3. Civil Rights Compliance. The Grantee is required to meet legal requirements 
relating to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal funds. 
Those requirements include ensuring that entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from the U.S. Department of the Treasury do not deny benefits or 
services, or otherwise discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin 
(including limited English proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual 
orientation and gender identity), in accordance with the following authorities: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. 
2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 
22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), Public Law 93-
112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the 
Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, Public Law 94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department 
implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 23. 

L. General. The Grantee shall do and perform or cause to be done and performed all 
acts and things required to be done or performed by or on behalf of the Grantee 
under the provisions of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 and this Assistance 
Agreement in accordance with the terms of such provisions. 
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SECTION 4 - MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATIONS 

A. The parties agree that the funds granted by the Commonwealth to the Grantee are 
to be used solely for the purposes of the acquisition and construction of the Project. 
Further, the parties agree that the obligations imposed upon them are for their 
rPcnPrtiv hPnPfit anrd thP, timely of thP r hlinatir nc cPt hPrPin are 

necessary for the Project. 

B. Except as may otherwise be provided herein, the parties to this Agreement shall 
be solely responsible for any incidental costs incurred in fulfilling their respective 
obligations under this Agreement and neither party shall have any claim against 
the other party for reimbursement of incidental costs whether or not a party is in 
default. 

SECTION 5 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

A. This Agreement shall be valid only after both parties have duly signed and provided 
the executed document to the other. 

B. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause and may 
be terminated by either party without cause upon 30 days written notice to the 
other party. Termination of this Agreement shall not diminish or in any other 
manner affect any other remedy that may be available to the parties for any breach 
of the Agreement that occurs prior to the termination. 

C. If, after execution of this Agreement, additional financial assistance is found to be 
required for the acquisition and construction of the Project and the required 
additional assistance does or does not become available to the Grantee from any 
source, the Project may be modifi d iy I.I IQI IIJ.C II I JI.V fJC QI IU budget 
is mutually agreed to by the parties to this Agreement, and clearly documented in 
a revision of the Project Budget within the Project Profile. 

SECTION 6 - ADVANCE FUNDING FOR PROJECT PLANNING AND DESIGN 

A. The Grantee may request, in writing, that a portion of the grant funds be disbursed 
prior to Project bidding to pay up to 50% of the budgeted engineering fee for Project 
planning and design to the Project Engineer to expedite submission of the Project 
plans and specifications for review by the Kentucky Division of Water. The balance 
of the budgeted engineering fee for project planning and design may be paid only 
after approval of the plans by the Kentucky Division of Water. 

B. It is specifically understood and agreed by the Grantee in the event that the Project 
has not been advertised for bids within twenty-four (24) months from the date of 
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signing of this Agreement, for whatever reason, any funds disbursed for Project 
planning and design are subject to full and immediate repayment by the Grantee 
to the Authority. 

C. No funds shall be released under this Section until the requirements of Exhibits 1 
through 7 of this Agreement have been completed. 

SECTION 7. - EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 

Section 7.1. Events of Default Defined. 

The following will be "Events of Default" under this Agreement and the term "Event of 
Default" or "Default" will mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement, any one or more of 
the following events: 

A. Any unauthorized or improper expenditure of funds by the Grantee, or expenditure 
of funds by the Grantee other than in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

B. Failure by the Grantee to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement 
on its part to be observed or performed, other than as referred to in subsection (A) 
of this Section, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such 
failure and requesting that it be remedied will have been given to the Grantee by 
the Authority unless the Authority agrees in writing to an extension of such time 
prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot 
be corrected within the applicable period, the Authority will not unreasonably 
withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by 
the Grantee within the applicable period and diligently pursued until such failure is 
corrected. 

C. The dissolution or liquidation of the Grantee, or the voluntary initiation by the 
Grantee of any proceeding under any federal or Kentucky law relating to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, arrangement, reorganization, readjustment of debt or any 
other form of debtor relief, or the initiation against the Grantee of any such 
proceeding which remain undismissed for sixty (60) days, or the entry by the 
Grantee into an agreement of composition with creditors or the failure generally by 
the Grantee to pay its debts as they become due. 

D. A default by the Grantee under the provisions of any agreements relating to its 
debt obligations. 
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Section 7.2. Remedies on Default. 

Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 7.1 has occurred and is continuing, 
the Authority may, without any further demand or notice, take one or any combination of 
the following remedial steps: 

A. Declare this Agreement void from the beginning without further obligation to the 
Grantee and may commence appropriate legal action to enforce its rights under 
this Agreement including action for recovery of funds expended hereunder. 

B. Terminate any remaining grant payments to the Grantee. 

C. Exercise all the rights and remedies of the Authority set forth in the Act. 

D. Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

E. Submit a formal referral to the appropriate federal agency. 

Section 7.3. No Remedy Exclusive. 

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Authority is intended to be exclusive, 
and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other remedy 
given hereunder and every remedy now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay 
or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default will impair any such 
right or power and any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as 
often as may be deemed expedient. 

Section 7.4. Consent to Powers of Authority Under Act. 

The Grantee hereby acknowledges to the Authority its understanding of the provisions of 
the Act, vesting in the Authority certain powers, rights and privileges in respect of the 
Project upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, and the Grantee hereby covenants 
and agrees that if the Authority should in the future have recourse to said rights and 
powers, the Grantee shall take no action of any nature whatsoever calculated to inhibit, 
nullify, void, delay or render nugatory such actions of the Authority in the due and prompt 
implementation of this Agreement. 

Section 7.5. Waivers. 

In the event that any agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and 
thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver will be limited to the particular breach 
so waived and will not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 

Section 7.6. Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. 

In the event that either party hereto defaults under any of the provisions hereof and the 
non-defaulting party employs attorneys or incurs other expenses for the enforcement of 
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performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the defaulting 
party herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will pay on demand therefor to 
the non-defaulting party the fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred 
by the non-defaulting party. 

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. The Grantee may sign this Agreement electronically via a program subject to the 
approval by the Authority, or manually on a paper copy that is scanned to the 
portable document format (.pdf) and emailed to the Authority. Transmittal of all 
other correspondence or documentation, including the required Exhibits identified 
in the Attachment shall be scanned and attached as a file to email. The Authority 
and the Grantee, working through the Project Administrator, shall assist each other 
in securing and maintaining a complete, current Project document file for 
reference, records, and audit purposes. 

B. The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience and the terms 
contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the 
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

C. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of the successor and assigns, respectively, of the parties. Except for 
the limited use of a memorandum of agreement (as provided in Section 3 herein), 
this provision shall not be construed to permit an assignment by any party of any 
of its rights and duties under this Agreement which assignment shall be prohibited 
except with the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

D. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by a written instrument duly 
executed by each of the parties hereto. 

E. Timely and accurate performance of aii actions by the respective parties are 
mutually recognized by the parties of this Agreement to be of importance to the 
citizens of the Commonwealth generally, and particularly to those citizens directly 
affected by the Project. 

F. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

G The Authority may audit or review all documentation and records of the Grantee 
relating to this Project pursuant to the provisions of Section 45A.150 of the KRS or 
any other applicable federal or state law. 

H. The Grantee agrees that the Authority, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, 
the Auditor of Public Accounts, and the Legislative Research Commission, or their 
duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, 
papers, records, or other documentation or evidence, which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of financial audit or program review. 
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Furthermore, any books, documents, papers records, or other evidence provided 
to the Commonwealth, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of 
Public Accounts, or the Legislative Research Commission, which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement, shall be subject to public disclosure regardless of the 
proprietary nature of the information, unless specific information is identified and 
exempted and agreed to by the Secretary of the Finance and Administration 
(rahinct ac ri-Pting the nrnvicinnc nf KRR F1 R7R(1)(r) prinr to thP, nf 
this Agreement. The Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet shall 
not restrict the public release of any information which would otherwise be subject 
to public release if a state government agency was providing the services. 

I . During the performance of this contract, the Grantee agrees to the following 
Appendix I I to 2 CFR Part 200 contract provisions. as amended: 

Equal Employment Opportunity 

1. The Grantee will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race. color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity. or national origin. The Grantee will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race. color. religion, sex, sexual orientation. 
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited 
to the following: 

a. Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

b. The Grantee will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 
by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

c. The Grantee will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or 
applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of 
the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision 
shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the 
compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of 
such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such 
other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have 
access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 
formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, 
hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or 
is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

Page 10 of 15 



22CWW362 

d. The Grantee will send to each labor union or representative of workers with 
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or 
workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section 
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment. 

P . Th P  r'r2ritP,P, will nnrrip!y with !! of PxPri ltivP nrclaq- 1124E of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of 
the Secretary of Labor. 

f. The Grantee will furnish all information and reports required by Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations. and orders 
of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his 
books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

g. In the event of the Grantee's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders. 
this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part. 
and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further government 
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965. 
and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24. 1965, or by rule. 
regulation. or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 
law 

h. The Grantee will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding 
paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding 
Upill I COLA I JUill...ill ILI CIL...Lill UI VCI IULJI . I I IC I.UI ILI CIL...LLJI VVIII LCINC JUI.I I QI.LIUI I 

with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including 
sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a 
Grantee becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering 
agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

All contracts that are in excess of $100,000 and involve the employment of 
mechanics or laborers must include provisions requiring compliance with the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act as follows: 
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1. Overtime requirements: No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part 
of the Agreement work which may require or involve the employment of 
laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in 
any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess 
of forty hours in such a workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of 
nav for all hni irc \n/nrkpri in PYCPCC of forty hni irc in ci lrh a \A/f-Irk\A/PPLC 

2. Violation: liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any 
violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, the contractor 
and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. 
In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or 
a territory, to such District or to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer 
or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. in the sum of $10 for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The Grantee shall upon 
its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld. from any moneys 
payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under 
any such contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contractor, 
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums 
as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. 

4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts 
LI IC Cli aUSC"'S ....Jet ft-J.-141h In 1.5-s aragral.5 s Ik I )\ 4-ihroug -t ki 4)\ #LhiS Se Ct. i 0 Oulu cal 0 

clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower-tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower-tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 
paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

Clean Air Act 

1. The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 
7401 et seq. 

2. The Grantee agrees to report each violation to the Authority and understands 
and agrees that the Authority will. in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate 
Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 
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3. The Grantee agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan 
Act funding. 

Fc,r1.-r ! Wafer Pr%!!..tif, n r-,,ntrrN! Ar't 

1. The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

2. The Grantee agrees to report each violation to the Authority and understands 
and agrees that the Authority will, in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate 
Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

3. The Grantee agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan 
Act funds. 

Debarment and Suspension 

Contracts shall not be awarded to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM) listed at www.sam.gov.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the 
required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not 
used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing 
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Corlyrusb, offic.;er ur employee of Corlyrusb, or au employee of a irierm ber of 
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. 
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the recipient. 

[Signature Page Follows] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their respective duly authorized officials as of the day and year above written. 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE 
AUTHORITY 

By: _ ica..)  'Par Sandy Witt
Sandy Williams, Executive Director 

Date: 06/07/2024 

SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION 
INC 

By: 
Auto rize fficial 

Print Name:  .7;4,--  V. draa.12;RP 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXAMINED 
BY: 

By:  /taf.ala. Lzie. 
LEGAL COUNSEL TO THE KENTUCKY 

INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Andy Beshear 
Governor 

November 7, 2025 

100 Airport Road 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

(502) 573-0260 
kia.ky.gov 

Morris Vaughn, Manager 
Southeastern Water Association 
6615 KY 941 
Somerset, KY 42501 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER (B26-002) 

Dear Mr. Vaughn: 

Sandy Williams 
Executive Director 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority ("the Authority") commends your efforts to improve 
public service facilities in your community. On November 6, 2025, the Authority approved 
your loan for the 2023 Various Waterline Upgrades project subject to the conditions stated 
in Attachment A to this letter. The total cost of the project shall not exceed Si ,455,928, 
without prior authorization of the Authority, of which the Authority loan shall provide 
$617,823, of the funding. Other anticipated funding for the project is reflected in 
Attachment B. The final loan amount will be equal to the Authority's portion of estimated 
project cost applied to the actual project cost. Attachment B incorporated herein by 
reference fully describes the project. 

An Assistance Agreement will be executed between the Authority and the Southeastern 
Water Association upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in Attachment 
A. You must meet the conditions set forth in Attachment A and enter into an Assistance 
Agreement by November 7, 2026 (twelve months from the date of this letter). A one-time 
extension of up to six months may be granted for applicants that experience extenuating 
circumstances. Funds will be available for disbursement only after execution of the 
Assistance Agreement. 

TEAM 
KENTUCKY 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



Mr. Vaughn 
November 7, 2025 
Page 2 

Please inform the Authority of any changes in your financing plan as soon as possible. 
We wish you every success for this project which will benefit both your community and 
the Commonwealth as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

Milward Dedman 
Deputy Executive Director 

Attachments 

cc: Brendan Welch, Kenvirons, LLC 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acceptance of this commitment 
and its terms. Complete the attached "Authorization for Electronic Deposit of Vendor 
Payment Form" and the "ACH Debit Authorization Form" and return to this office and 
the US Bank address at the bottom of each form. Also included are the "Legal 
Counsel Certification Letter" sample and the "Statement of Approval of Projections of 
Revenue and Expenses" for you to complete at the appropriate time. These forms and 
an SRF loan checklist guide can be found in Attachment C of this letter. 

rfted Date 
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SOUTHEASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION 
6615 HIGHWAY 914 

SOMERSET, KENTUCKY 42501 
606-678-5501 

"This institution is an equal opportunity provider." 

October 16, 2025 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
100 Airport Road, 3rd Floor 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

ATTN: Jeremy Skinner, Financial Analyst 

RE: Southeastern Water Association 
U.S. 27 Waterline Replacement 

Dear Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, 

As a part of the funding package applied for under the Fund B Loan program, 
Southeastern Water Association intends to use $380,282 of local funds from 
excess debt reserve accounts for a portion of this project. 

If you should have any questions or need additional information, please contact 
our office at (606) 678-5501. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Crawf rd 
President 
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F. 

GENERAL NOTES 
1. Stations shover in this plan eel are for reference only and do not reflect the actual linear lengths of ppe required for conotruction. 

2. The Contractor shall be responsible for coordbating all construction work with local utlity companies and other cmcemed parties. 

3. Existing buried utilities ore shown on the drmings In their genercl location utillzbg the best molloble information. Before 
construction Deere 11.2a or through existing DEMME, (i.e. GOB CO., Telephone Co.. et.) each utility company shell be notified, 0 
request for the exact location of the utility ohdl be made, and permission to proceed with construction. The Contractor shall 
confect BUD at telephone no. 1-800-752-6007 or fill. 

ybegirdieut.hrci;Joguhndasnyofproojerer4rntohne. Ctanalgcreempshorall ythcaokne. ltIrtnetelonf oeowerseme eofnt.the exact location of construction 
4. 

Before
th'e7.41°nert 

5. The Contractor shall have on hand et the job site 11 1/4', 22 1/2', 45' ond 90' bends for use where necessary far proper 
installation. All fittings are incidental to project construction. Contractor will NOT be compensated for my fitting necessary to 
Complete the project. 

B. Pipe joint deflection shall not exceed 2'. Bending of PVC pipe will not be ollowed. 

7. At same locations. the Contractor may be reqfted to provide coins cover over line. Cost of extra cover is to be included in unit 
prim bid for line instollation end no separate payment all be made for such mare cover. 

8. Connecting new lines to existing lines or to not. bl other contracts Is subsidiary to the contract unless specifically itemized in the 
Bid Schedule, It includes fittings, sleeves, eta, but does not Include gate volves, which are an extra pay item. 

9. All fittings, thrust restraints ond oppurtenanceo to construct the pipelines os shoes shell be included in the unit cost for the pipe 
and are not separate pay items. 

10. The pipe lengths ham been estimated as dose os possible. The Contractor shell be responable for ordering pipe quontities 
necessary for installotion to the 'knits as shown on the Drawings unless otherwise Instructed Any left—over pipe quantities Plan be 
the property of the Contractor unless Other Orraegernerde ore mode. The Owner shell not be resperisible for re—etaCkhg or other 
charges associated with the left over pipe. 

11. Ductile Iron pipe shall be instdied in accordance with Stondord MAYA C150/ANSI A21.50 toying Condition Type 3 unless otherwise 
noted 

12. All drier:says that are cut shall be backfilled with KYTC #8 or El—kl and shell be included in the unit price for pavement 
replacement. 

13. All open at streets and roads ond trenches cut In existing povernents eholl be bockfilled with compacted embed stone or DGA in 
accordonce with the miscellaneous details drawings. 

14. Paved 
nc 

driveways  be free—bored. Free bore unit prices ore contained in Bid Schedule. The material n which the free bore is 
m 

15. 
It

I: htl ial rolTdc'nettebr'.tr S:ef Tee 
Contracta to 

c ?loo'7161V3th 910s re'cIrci:i t I nfo:Ter:0 gs 
the
o :tf:Zgounggulrft`?;;;noetnrnof thheeagy'"'e

ChlOrnated water. 

16. The lime period far pressure testing in this project sholl be 6 hours. 

17. Markbg tope end tracer wire shell be instolled with all pipe and oil service tubing. See Technical Specification 15100. and the 
miscellaneous detolls drawings. 

18. During the propose of topping asbestos cement mains, the contractor shall conform la OSHA regulatkno governing the handing of 
haeerdeus waste. Pieces of oshestes cement resulting from the top shall be double bogged, placed in a rigid container and disposed 
of In an approved landfill. 

19. Locations where pipeline Is to be Visioned on stote road right of way are approximately delineated on the drawing. The Contractor 
shell determine the field locations far trefleitiOne between private easements, and stole and county road righter of .y. 

20. All pipelines installed in the ditchline on state or county rights of way shall have 02 minimum cover aver tap of pipe. 

21. The pipelbe trench width will be strictly enforced. See Technicol Specificotion 15100 for trench width requirements. 

22. Rough cleanup must be performed as the pipe is laid or as soon thereoner as possible. Failure to keep rough Cleanup Current with 
the ppe laying may be grounds far cdditional retainers.. 

23. Do not cut fences except where specifically shown and noted. 

24. The Contractor shall obtain and pay for dl grading. storm woter, etc. permits, If any ore required to complete the cork. The 
contractor shall maintain 0:01pIkriCe With all CanditiOne, IfirritOtierill and stipulations of all permits. The CentraCtOr Bildt net 
commence work, except mobilizotion, until he has obtained all requited permits for said work. The contractor shall supply the owner 
with copies of oil permits within 24 hours of rece"pt. At work sholl be provided in eomnplionce with all 4*phi:chic local, stole and 
natlonol building codas. 

25. All work shall be executed In complionce with the current workplace safety regulations of the U.S. Deportment of Leber, Occupoticrid 
Safety and Hedth Administration 

28. The Contractor shall restrict dl construction activities to within the limits of the public right of way and the privote easements ond 
fee parcels unless otherwise opproved Dy the Owner in writing. The Contractor shall be solely Iloble for any and all Work he performs 
outside of the boundaries of the public rood right of way end the privete easements and fee porcels prodded by the Omer. 

27. The Contract*. is solely remensible for deterrnillatiOn of the existents and laCatien of 01y end all other burled WRNS 11 the 
vidnity of his Work. Utilities sham on the Project Drawings are purported to be osoroxinate only and not warranted to be complete 
nor accurately lecoted. Additional burled utility lines, other than as shown on the Project OH:wings. may exist in the vicinity of the 
Protect work. The Controctor eholl contact local utilities end/or locating “rdoe at Most 48 hours prior to commencing work on the 
Project. 

28. The Contractor shall be responsible for all traffic control measures necessary for the safe execution of his work, including but not 
limited to flogger. traffic oignage, barricades, construction fencing and nighttime coming lights. Traffic safety provisions shall be 
employed by the Contractor in accordance with the Standards of the appropriate State and local public highway authorities, 

29. All excavation end all boring shell be considered unclassified excavation end undossified boring. No additionol payment shell be doe 
and payable to the Contractor for deleatering of pipe trenches/excavations or for excavation ono removal 01 reek ed for boring 
cooing through rock. 

30, All water mob fittings shall be ductile iron, restrained mechasicd Pint compact fittings, for water service complying with AWWA 
Standard 0153. Unless otherwise specifically shown or noted, no PVC fitting. other then in—line repay couplings, ell be accepted. 

31. All water 01011 fittings in 000501 to joist restraints shell be anchored with poured concrete thrust blocks as shown in the 

ORR 10.40/19 (2016173) 

GENERAL NOTES (CONT.) 
miser:Ili:near= details sowings. Wrap fittings "n mininum 5—mil plastic (PVC) wrap prior to forming ond pouring the block. 

32. Prior to cuttkig sonatina driveways. the Contractor shall notify the property owner/occupant at least 24 hours In advance ond shall 
schedule his Work such to restrict access to not mere than 2 hours in one (1) day 

33. Thor Contractor shdl repair/replace ony ond di existing utility lines and equipment damaged by the Controctoe. Work, to the 
satisfaction of the damaged utility and et no additional cost to the Owner. 

34. The Contractor sholl protect oil drainage culverts In the vicinity of hie work ond shall repair or replace oil culverts domoged by 11;6 
Work and at no additionol wet to the Owner. All misting culverts may not be ehown/noted on the Project Drawings. 

35. Existing utility lines may be calhodically protected. The installation of all ductile iron pipe, fittings and appurtenances within 100' of 
cathodleolly protected utility lam shall comply with AWWA Stondcrd 0105 (Polyethylene Encasement), latest revision. and at no 
additional cost to the Omer. 

36.1f rimer or other sanitary facilities ore encountered, the Engineer shell direct the relocation of the water main to provide separation 
end/err other protection of tha water main in accordance with terms of the Kentucky Deportment far Environmental Protection. 
Division of Water Construction Permit. The Contractor shall provide relocation of the water math es drooled by the Engineer and the 
Contract Price od).isted only by/to the number of Bid Item units actodly provided, 

37.50 swot. service Plan be activated until the new week has been completed, sterilized, end tested In occordence with the Contract 
DOCuMente and accepted In writing by the [Wier. 

ENVIRONMENTAL NOTES 
I. When creasing oil streams and ditches, wilt barriers, ie. strow bales or sit fence,es, shall be put n place to prevent sediment 

runoff into stream. Conventionol stream crossings shot' be accomplished durng low flow periods. Stream banks shell be reseeded 
with native vegetation beneficial to wildlife immediately following completion of the stream crossing. Disturbed surfaces shall be 
restored to original contours and excess moterials removed to a properly confined areo. 

2. Contractor shall not &Blurb any trees with a diameter at breast height greater than three (3) inches. 

3. Any excavotion by the Contractor thot uncovers o historical or archaeological artifact shall be immediately reported to the 
Owner and Engineer. Construction shell be temporarily honed pending the notifleaticn process and further directions after 
consultoUon with the State Historic Preservotim Officer (SIPS). 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT NOTES 
1. Underground utilities installed in ids state right of way shall be located within 3-5 feet from the edge of the right of way 

unless otherwise shown on the plans. 

2. Underground utilities on state right of way shell be installed ot a minimum depth of 42 (under roadways, romps, ditch fines 
and in all other crew within date right of way), as mandated by ICYIC District 8. 

3, Underground utilities crossing any paved <Irk/away inside state right of way shall be installed by boring unless written 
permission to open cut is *Reined from the properly owner. 

4. Underground utilities shall not be installed in embankment fills or between edge of pavement and ditchline unless epecifically 
noted an permitted plans. 

5. Fira Hydrants or utility service boxes should be located within 2 feet from the edge of right of way Ilse, or off right of MI,

6. Contact larTC—DOH District Office prior to beginning work. 

7. All affected ICYIC ditchfines shot' remain freer of excess sit or erosion and constructed to the normal typical motion of the
roadway with a minimum depth of 16 inches from the shoulder brook point. 

8. All necessory steps shell be token to prevent erosion or siltation of the public right of way. adjoining property ond 
woterwOye. 

9. All traffic control far construction and maintenance operations will conform to the Mendel en Uniform Trafffe Conde, Omen, 
All construction and maintenance operations must be planned with full regard la safely to keep trafrc interference la on 
absolute minimum. Closure of intersecting streets, road opproschea or other ocean points is to be held to a minimum. 

10. All areas disturbed by ufility Inetollatlon should be kept to a minimum ond restoration methods should be in accordance with 
Kentucky Transportation Cabinet's 2012 Standard Speetikedions lee Rood and Badge Constewellon. 

11. All machinery shall use deal plates to protect the existing pavement of state highway% while installing utilities parallel to said 
gate highways. 

12. When inetolling utilities around mating drainage structures, the utifity shell be weed along the entire length of the drainage 
atructure to protect the uglily and drainage etrotture. 
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Exhibit 8 

U.S. 27 Service Area Map 
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Exhibit 9 

Photos 

Water Line Repair Along U.S. 27 
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Exhibit 11 

Estimated Annual Cost to Operate 



Purchased Power Calculations

Average Monthly Bill from July 2025 to November 2025 = $2,123 Estimated Monthly Bill after Project Completion = $1,631

Estimated Yearly Power Cost (2025) = $25,476 Estimated Yearly Power Cost (2027) = $19,576

Average Daily Pump Runtimes from 9/1/2025 to 11/15/2025 = 14.88 hours Estimated Daily Pump Runtime after Project Completion = 11.43     hours

Average Daily Flowrate from 9/1/2025 to 11/15/2025 = 365 GPM Estimated Flowrate after Project Completion = 475 GPM

Average Daily Gallons Pumped 325,872 gallons Percent Reduction of Pump Runtime = 23% 

-$               

Proposed O&M Expenses (2027)
Operating Expenses Amount

Purchased Power 19,576.00$    

37,981.00$    

O&M Total: 57,557.00$  

Debt Service -$               

5,500.00$      

O&M Total: 30,976.00$  

Existing O&M Expenses (2025)
Operating Expenses Amount

Purchased Power 25,476.00$    

Debt Service** 
Transmission & Distribution* Transmission & Distribution* 

* Estimated Annual Costs related to line repair 
 
 
**Includes Principal & Interest of $36,745 and Annual Loan Servicing Fee of $1,236 
 



 

 

 

Exhibit 12 

Division of Water Approval 



 
 

Andy Beshear 
GOVERNOR 

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

300 Sower Boulevard 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

Phone: (502) 564-2150 
Fax: 502-564-4245 

 
Rebecca W. Goodman 

SECRETARY 

 
Anthony R. Hatton 

COMMISSIONER 

 

 
@KentuckyEEC  |  EEC .KY.GOV  An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D

July 11, 2024 
 

Morris Vaughn 
South Eastern WT Associates - Nelson Valley 
147 E Somerset Church Rd 
Somerset, KY  42503   

 
 RE:   US 27 & Eagles Nest WL Replacement 
  Pulaski County, KY 
  AI #: 34090, APE20240002 
  PWSID #: 1000311 
    

Dear Mr. Vaughn: 
 

 We have reviewed the plans and specifications for the above referenced project. The 
plans include the construction of approximately 3,100 LF of 8-inch PVC waterline and 5,400 
LF of 8-inch DI waterline. This is to advise that plans and specifications for the above 
referenced project are APPROVED with respect to sanitary features of design, as of this date 
with the requirements contained in the attached construction permit. 
 
   If you have any questions concerning this project, please contact Roxanne Bow at 
502-782-0616. 

 
Sincerely, 

X
       Terry Humphries, P.E. 
       Supervisor, Engineering Section 
       Water Infrastructure Branch 
       Division of Water 
TH:RB 
Enclosures 
c: Kenvirons Inc 

Pulaski County Health Department  
Division of Plumbing 
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Department of Highways Encroachment Permit 

 



ff Op 
, • 

Andy Beshear 
GOVERNOR 

Southeastern Water Assoc. 
147 East Somerset Church Rd 
Somerset, KY 42503 

Dear Sir: 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
TRANSPORTATION CABINET 

transportation.ky.gov 

Subject: Pulaski County 
US 27 
MP 100-0027-7.1 
Permit: 08-2024-00233 

Jim Gray 
SECRETARY 

The attached is your copy of the approved encroachment permit application. One copy is to be submitted to 
your contractor. This permit is to remain on the project until the permitted work is complete. 

You are to shape and seed any disturbed areas on the State's right of way. All work and materials are to 
comply with the Department's Standard Specification for Road and Bridge Construction- 2019 Edition. Signs, 
barricades, lights, etc. if required, are to be installed in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices. 

Please notify this office when permitted work begins. When work has been completed, the Notice of 
Completion of Encroachment Permit Work must be completed and returned so an inspection can be made by 
personnel from this office. If all work has been completed satisfactorily, your indemnity will then be released. 

JJ/cm 

Yours truly, 

Adam Dixon, P.E. 
Transportation Engineer Supervisor 
District 8- Somerset 

8/9/2024 
Date 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER M/F/D 



 

 

 

Exhibit 14 

Amortization Schedule KIA Loan B26-002 

 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY
ANTICIPATED REPAYMENT SCHEDULE
LOAN #B26-002  
SOUTHEASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION INC 1.75% Interest

$18,372.70 P & I Calculation

Payment Principal Interest Interest Principal Servicing Credit Total Principal R & M Total
Date Due Due Rate & Interest Fee Due Payment Balance Reserve Reserve

$617,823.00
06/01/26 $12,966.75 $5,405.95 1.75% $18,372.70 $617.82 $0.00 $18,990.52 $604,856.25 $0.00 $0.00
12/01/26 $13,080.21 $5,292.49 1.75% $18,372.70 $604.86 $0.00 $18,977.56 $591,776.04 $12,100.00 $12,100.00
06/01/27 $13,194.66 $5,178.04 1.75% $18,372.70 $591.78 $0.00 $18,964.48 $578,581.38 $0.00 $12,100.00
12/01/27 $13,310.11 $5,062.59 1.75% $18,372.70 $578.58 $0.00 $18,951.28 $565,271.27 $12,100.00 $24,200.00
06/01/28 $13,426.58 $4,946.12 1.75% $18,372.70 $565.27 $0.00 $18,937.97 $551,844.69 $0.00 $24,200.00
12/01/28 $13,544.06 $4,828.64 1.75% $18,372.70 $551.84 $0.00 $18,924.54 $538,300.63 $12,100.00 $36,300.00
06/01/29 $13,662.57 $4,710.13 1.75% $18,372.70 $538.30 $0.00 $18,911.00 $524,638.06 $0.00 $36,300.00
12/01/29 $13,782.12 $4,590.58 1.75% $18,372.70 $524.64 $0.00 $18,897.34 $510,855.94 $12,100.00 $48,400.00
06/01/30 $13,902.71 $4,469.99 1.75% $18,372.70 $510.86 $0.00 $18,883.56 $496,953.23 $0.00 $48,400.00
12/01/30 $14,024.36 $4,348.34 1.75% $18,372.70 $496.95 $0.00 $18,869.65 $482,928.87 $12,100.00 $60,500.00
06/01/31 $14,147.07 $4,225.63 1.75% $18,372.70 $482.93 $0.00 $18,855.63 $468,781.80 $0.00 $60,500.00
12/01/31 $14,270.86 $4,101.84 1.75% $18,372.70 $468.78 $0.00 $18,841.48 $454,510.94 $12,100.00 $72,600.00
06/01/32 $14,395.73 $3,976.97 1.75% $18,372.70 $454.51 $0.00 $18,827.21 $440,115.21 $0.00 $72,600.00
12/01/32 $14,521.69 $3,851.01 1.75% $18,372.70 $440.12 $0.00 $18,812.82 $425,593.52 $12,100.00 $84,700.00
06/01/33 $14,648.76 $3,723.94 1.75% $18,372.70 $425.59 $0.00 $18,798.29 $410,944.76 $0.00 $84,700.00
12/01/33 $14,776.93 $3,595.77 1.75% $18,372.70 $410.94 $0.00 $18,783.64 $396,167.83 $12,100.00 $96,800.00
06/01/34 $14,906.23 $3,466.47 1.75% $18,372.70 $396.17 $0.00 $18,768.87 $381,261.60 $0.00 $96,800.00
12/01/34 $15,036.66 $3,336.04 1.75% $18,372.70 $381.26 $0.00 $18,753.96 $366,224.94 $12,100.00 $108,900.00
06/01/35 $15,168.23 $3,204.47 1.75% $18,372.70 $366.22 $0.00 $18,738.92 $351,056.71 $0.00 $108,900.00
12/01/35 $15,300.95 $3,071.75 1.75% $18,372.70 $351.06 $0.00 $18,723.76 $335,755.76 $12,100.00 $121,000.00
06/01/36 $15,434.84 $2,937.86 1.75% $18,372.70 $335.76 $0.00 $18,708.46 $320,320.92 $0.00 $121,000.00
12/01/36 $15,569.89 $2,802.81 1.75% $18,372.70 $320.32 $0.00 $18,693.02 $304,751.03 $12,100.00 $133,100.00
06/01/37 $15,706.13 $2,666.57 1.75% $18,372.70 $304.75 $0.00 $18,677.45 $289,044.90 $0.00 $133,100.00
12/01/37 $15,843.56 $2,529.14 1.75% $18,372.70 $289.04 $0.00 $18,661.74 $273,201.34 $12,100.00 $145,200.00
06/01/38 $15,982.19 $2,390.51 1.75% $18,372.70 $273.20 $0.00 $18,645.90 $257,219.15 $0.00 $145,200.00
12/01/38 $16,122.03 $2,250.67 1.75% $18,372.70 $257.22 $0.00 $18,629.92 $241,097.12 $12,100.00 $157,300.00
06/01/39 $16,263.10 $2,109.60 1.75% $18,372.70 $241.10 $0.00 $18,613.80 $224,834.02 $0.00 $157,300.00
12/01/39 $16,405.40 $1,967.30 1.75% $18,372.70 $224.83 $0.00 $18,597.53 $208,428.62 $12,100.00 $169,400.00
06/01/40 $16,548.95 $1,823.75 1.75% $18,372.70 $208.43 $0.00 $18,581.13 $191,879.67 $0.00 $169,400.00
12/01/40 $16,693.75 $1,678.95 1.75% $18,372.70 $191.88 $0.00 $18,564.58 $175,185.92 $12,100.00 $181,500.00
06/01/41 $16,839.82 $1,532.88 1.75% $18,372.70 $175.19 $0.00 $18,547.89 $158,346.10 $0.00 $181,500.00
12/01/41 $16,987.17 $1,385.53 1.75% $18,372.70 $158.35 $0.00 $18,531.05 $141,358.93 $12,100.00 $193,600.00
06/01/42 $17,135.81 $1,236.89 1.75% $18,372.70 $141.36 $0.00 $18,514.06 $124,223.12 $0.00 $193,600.00
12/01/42 $17,285.75 $1,086.95 1.75% $18,372.70 $124.22 $0.00 $18,496.92 $106,937.37 $12,100.00 $205,700.00
06/01/43 $17,437.00 $935.70 1.75% $18,372.70 $106.94 $0.00 $18,479.64 $89,500.37 $0.00 $205,700.00
12/01/43 $17,589.57 $783.13 1.75% $18,372.70 $89.50 $0.00 $18,462.20 $71,910.80 $12,100.00 $217,800.00
06/01/44 $17,743.48 $629.22 1.75% $18,372.70 $71.91 $0.00 $18,444.61 $54,167.32 $0.00 $217,800.00
12/01/44 $17,898.74 $473.96 1.75% $18,372.70 $54.17 $0.00 $18,426.87 $36,268.58 $12,100.00 $229,900.00
06/01/45 $18,055.35 $317.35 1.75% $18,372.70 $36.27 $0.00 $18,408.97 $18,213.23 $0.00 $229,900.00
12/01/45 $18,213.23 $159.47 1.75% $18,372.70 $18.21 $0.00 $18,390.91 $0.00 $12,100.00 $242,000.00

Totals $617,823.00 $117,085.00 $734,908.00 $13,381.13 $0.00 $748,289.13 $242,000.00
Created by KIA on 11/24/2025

Unofficial
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Conditional Commitment Letter 

KIA Loan B26-002 

 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Andy Beshear 
Governor 

November 7, 2025 

100 Airport Road 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

(502) 573-0260 
kia.ky.gov 

Morris Vaughn, Manager 
Southeastern Water Association 
6615 KY 941 
Somerset, KY 42501 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER (B26-002) 

Dear Mr. Vaughn: 

Sandy Williams 
Executive Director 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority ("the Authority") commends your efforts to improve 
public service facilities in your community. On November 6, 2025, the Authority approved 
your loan for the 2023 Various Waterline Upgrades project subject to the conditions stated 
in Attachment A to this letter. The total cost of the project shall not exceed $1,455,928, 
without prior authorization of the Authority, of which the Authority loan shall provide 
$617,823, of the funding. Other anticipated funding for the project is reflected in 
Attachment B. The final loan amount will be equal to the Authority's portion of estimated 
project cost applied to the actual project cost. Attachment B incorporated herein by 
reference fully describes the project. 

An Assistance Agreement will be executed between the Authority and the Southeastern 
Water Association upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in Attachment 
A. You must meet the conditions set forth in Attachment A and enter into an Assistance 
Agreement by November 7, 2026 (twelve months from the date of this letter). A one-time 
extension of up to six months may be granted for applicants that experience extenuating 
circumstances. Funds will be available for disbursement only after execution of the 
Assistance Agreement. 

TEAM JEL4_,
KENTUCKY 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



Mr. Vaughn 
November 7, 2025 
Page 2 

Please inform the Authority of any changes in your financing plan as soon as possible. 
We wish you every success for this project which will benefit both your community and 
the Commonwealth as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

Milward Dedman 
Deputy Executive Director 

Attachments 

cc: Brendan Welch, Kenvirons, LLC 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acceptance of this commitment 
and its terms. Complete the attached "Authorization for Electronic Deposit of Vendor 
Payment Form" and the "ACH Debit Authorization Form" and return to this office and 
the US Bank address at the bottom of each form. Also included are the "Legal 
Counsel Certification Letter" sample and the "Statement of Approval of Projections of 
Revenue and Expenses" for you to complete at the appropriate time. These forms and 
an SRF loan checklist guide can be found in Attachment C of this letter. 

ted Date 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Conditions 
 

Southeastern Water Association 
B26-002 

 

 

The Assistance Agreement and this commitment shall be subject, but not limited to, the 
following terms: 
 
 

1. The Authority project loan shall not exceed $617,823. 

 
2. The loan shall bear interest at the rate of 1.75% per annum commencing 

with the first draw of funds. 
 
3. The loan shall be repaid over a period not to exceed 20 years from the date 

of the last draw of funds. 
 
4. Interest shall be payable on the amount of actual funds received.  The first 

payment shall be due on June 1, or December 1, immediately succeeding 
the date of the initial draw of funds, provided that if such June 1, or 
December 1, shall be less than three months since the date of the initial 
draw of funds, then the first interest payment date shall be the June 1, or 
December 1, which is at least six months from the date of the initial draw of 
funds.  Interest payments will be due each six months thereafter until the 
loan is repaid. KIA requires the use of Automated Clearing House (ACH) 
debits for payment of all balances due on the loan. This will ensure that 
payments are credited timely to your account without the risk of incurring 
late payment fees. If the due date falls on a weekend or holiday your 
account will be debited on the next business day.  Please complete and 
return the authorization form in Attachment C of this letter to U.S. Bank for 
processing. 

  
5. Full principal payments will commence on June 1, or December 1, 

immediately succeeding the date of the last draw of funds, provided that if 
such June 1, or December 1, shall be less than three months since the date 
of the last draw of funds, then the first principal payment date shall be the 
June 1, or December 1, which is at least six months from the date of the last 
draw of funds.  Full payments will be due each six months thereafter until 
the loan is repaid.  

6. A loan servicing fee of 0.20% of the outstanding loan balance shall be 
payable to the Authority as a part of each interest payment. 

7. Loan funds will only be disbursed after execution of the Assistance 
Agreement as project costs are incurred. 



Attachment A 
November 7, 2025 
Page 2 

 

 
 

8. The Authority loan funds must be expended within six months of the official            
date of initiation of operation. 

 
9. The Authority requires that an annual financial audit be provided for the life 

of the loan. 
 

10. The final Assistance Agreement must be approved by ordinance or 
resolution, as applicable, of the city council or appropriate governing board. 

 
11. The borrower must maintain a 1.1 debt coverage ratio throughout the life of 

the KIA loan.  All borrowers are subject to at least an annual financial review 
for compliance. 

 

The following is a list of the standard conditions to be satisfied prior to execution of the 
Assistance Agreement or incorporated in the Assistance Agreement.  Any required 
documentation must be submitted to the party designated. 

 

1. Upon completion of final design of the facilities in the attached project 
description, favorable approval shall be obtained of such design by all 
appropriate parties as required by Kentucky statute or administrative 
regulation. 

  
2. The Borrower must provide certification from their legal counsel stating that 

the procurement procedures, including those for construction, land, 
equipment and professional services that are a part of the project, are in 
compliance with applicable state and local procurement laws.  

 
3. Documentation of final funding commitments from all parties other than the 

Authority as reflected in the Attachment B description shall be provided prior 
to preparation of the Assistance Agreement and disbursement of the loan 
monies.  Rejections of any anticipated project funding, or any new funding 
sources not reflected in Attachment B shall be immediately reported and 
may cause this loan to be subject to further consideration. 

 
4. Upon receipt of construction bids a tabulation of such bids and engineer’s 

recommendations on compliance with bid specifications and 
recommendation for award, shall be forwarded to the Authority for final 
approval and sizing of this loan and the project. 



Attachment A 
November 7, 2025 
Page 3 

 

 

 

5. The loan must undergo review by the Capital Projects and Bond Oversight 
Committee of the Kentucky Legislature prior to the state's execution of the 
Assistance Agreement.  The Committee meets monthly. Any special 
conditions listed in Attachment B must be satisfied before the project is 
presented before the Committee.  

 
6. Any required adjustment in utility service rates shall be adopted by 

ordinance, municipal order or resolution by the appropriate governing body 
of the Borrower.  Public hearings as required by law shall be held prior to 
the adoption of the service rate ordinance, order, or resolution.  Any 
required approvals by the Kentucky Public Service Commission shall be 
obtained. 

 
7. Based on the final “as bid” project budget, the borrower must provide 

satisfactory proof, based on then existing conditions, that the revenue 
projections in the attached descriptions are still obtainable and that the 
projections of operating expenses have not materially changed.  The “as 
bid” project budget shall be reviewed and approved by your consultant 
engineer. 

 
8. All easements or purchases of land shall be completed prior to 

commencement of construction. Certification of all land or easement 
acquisitions shall be provided to the Authority.  

 
9. The Borrower must provide documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement 

and Clearinghouse Comments. 
 
10. The Borrower must complete and return the “Authorization for Electronic 

Deposit of Borrower Payment” form in Attachment C of this letter to U.S. 
Bank. 

 
11. The Borrower will implement the Kentucky Uniform System of Accounting 

(KUSoA), or an alternative approved by the Authority and assure that rates 
and charges for services are based upon the cost of providing such service. 

 
12. The Borrower will provide Final Design Plans in an AutoCAD Drawing File 

Format (DWG), referenced to the appropriate (North, South or Single) 
Kentucky State Plane Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) on a 
Compact Disc (CD).  The recipient shall provide the Authority a digital copy 
(pdf) of the record drawings from the project within three months of 
construction completion. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

Executive Summary and Credit Analysis 
 

Southeastern Water Association 
B26-002 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Reviewer Jeremy Skinner
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY Date November 6, 2025
FUND B, INFRASTRUCTURE KIA Loan Number B26-002
REVOLVING LOAN FUND WRIS Number WX21199153

BORROWER SOUTHEASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION
PULASKI COUNTY

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

PROJECT FINANCING PROJECT BUDGET
Fund B Loan $617,823 Administrative Expenses $0
22CWW362 457,823                  Legal Expenses -                        
Local Funds 380,282                  Land, Easements -                        

Eng - Design / Const 86,000                   
Eng - Insp 84,600                   

-                         Construction 1,193,405              
-                         Contingency 91,923                   

TOTAL $1,455,928 TOTAL $1,455,928
REPAYMENT Rate 1.75% Est. Annual Payment $37,981

Term 20 Years 1st Payment 6 Mo. after first draw
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Engineer Kenvirons, LLC

Bond Counsel Dinsmore & Shohl, LLP
PROJECT SCHEDULE Bid Opening May-25

Construction Start Oct-25
Construction Stop Feb-26

DEBT PER CUSTOMER Existing $1,377 
Proposed $1,316 

OTHER DEBT See Attached

RESIDENTIAL RATES Users Avg. Bill
Current 8,041 $53.41 (for 4,000 gallons)
Additional 0 $53.41 (for 4,000 gallons)

REGIONAL COORDINATION

CASHFLOW
Cash Flow Before 

Debt Service Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Audited 2022 1,510,621 531,568 2.8
Audited 2023 1,818,809 699,478 2.6
Audited 2024 1,790,376 737,601 2.4
Projected 2025 1,709,489 754,250 2.3
Projected 2026 1,672,781 772,493 2.2
Projected 2027 1,636,869 789,842 2.1
Projected 2028 1,600,239 788,008 2.0
Projected 2029 1,562,876 756,559 2.1806,317

812,231

955,240
900,289
847,028

The Southeastern Water Association is requesting a Fund B loan in the amount of $617,823. This loan will be used in conjunction
with nearly $840,000 in combined Cleaner Water Program grants and local funds to fund the 2023 Various Waterline Upgrades
project. This project will replace existing undersized waterlines in service areas that are struggling to keep up with customer
demand. The project consists of the replacement of existing 6” waterline along US 27 and Heather Way with a combined 8,500
linear feet of 8” waterline. If funds remain following project completion, the Association will replace undersized waterline along KY
769 with 800 LF of 8” waterline and install 2,800 LF of 4” waterline extension along Mayfield School Road, 300 LF of 4” waterline
extension along Mark Welborn Road, and 2,600 LF of 3” waterline extension along Broyles Road.

Cash Flow After Debt Service

This project is consistent with regional planning recommendations.

979,053
1,119,331
1,052,775



 

 

 

 Exhibit 16 
Cleaner Water Program Grant 22CWW362  
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Andy Beshear 
Governor 

100 Airport Road 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

(502) 573-0260 
https://kia.ky.gov 

August 28, 2024 

Joe Crawford 
President 
South Eastern Water Association Inc 
PO Box 458 
Somerset, KY 42502 

Dear Official, 

Sandy Williams 
Executive Director 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
CONDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTAL COMMITMENT LETTER 

KIA Grant Number 22CWW362 
WRIS Project Number WX21199153 

Congratulations on receiving an increase to your existing Kentucky Cleaner Water 
Program (the "CWP") grant funds for your Project! The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
(the "Authority") approved the additional grant funds to the South Eastern Water 
Association Inc (the "Grantee") in the amount of $41,620 for the 2023 Various Waterline 
Upgrades project. This brings your total grant award to $457,823. We look forward to 
working with you to successfully complete your Project! All terms, conditions, and Exhibits 
previously provided to the Authority by the Grantee for this Grant are incorporated herein 
by reference. Note that this Conditional Supplemental Commitment Letter, Attachments 
and Exhibits hereto do not include certain exhibits that were included in your original 
Conditional Commitment Letter because updated versions of those exhibits are not 
needed for this supplemental grant. We have left the original Exhibit numbers in place for 
clarity. 

Please be aware that these CWP Grant Project funds are provided through the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund and must be obligated 
by December 31, 2024 and fully expended by December 31, 2026. Any funds not 
obligated by December 31, 2024 or expended by December 31, 2026 will be forfeited and 
will not be available for the project. 

TEAM ..11444 
KENTUCKY. 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



Joe Crawford 
August 28, 2024 
Page 2 

22CWW362 

An Assistance Agreement (or Supplemental Assistance Agreement if your 
Assistance Agreement is already signed) will be executed between the Authority and the 
Grantee upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in Attachment A. Funds 
will be available for disbursement only after execution of the Assistance Agreement and 
I or Supplemental Assistance Agreement. 

During the course of implementing your project, please inform the Authority of any 
changes in the project scope and financing plan as soon as possible. 

We wish you every success for this project, which will benefit both your community and 
the Commonwealth as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

Ulicurytd) 
Sandy Williams, 
Executive Director 

Attachments 

cc: Brendan Welch, Project Administrator 
Joseph Crawford, South Eastern Water Association 
Eddie Wayne Brown, Kenvirons, Inc. 
Martina Hadley, ADD Coordinator 
Carmen 'gnat, KIA Grant Analyst 
File 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acknowledgement and 
acceptance of the commitment and its terms and conditions incorporated by reference 
and in the Attachments and Exhibits. 

?-4Z cozy 
epted Date 
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EXHIBIT 1 

CERTIFICATION OF PROJECT PROFILE REVIEW & UPDATE 

The Project Profile was reviewed and updated in the Water Resource Information System 

as of  8/28/2024  by the Grantee's Authorized Official and Project Administrator. 

(date) 

Project Administrator: Brendan Welch 

Grant Number: 22CWW362 
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GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Grant Assistance Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by 
and between the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and 
politic, constituting a public corporation and governmental agency and instrumentality of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and the South Eastern Water Association Inc (the 
“Grantee”), acting herein through its Authorized Official, each a party to this Agreement, 
which shall be effective upon the date of signing by the Executive Director of the Authority, 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
 WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, being the 
duly and legally constituted legislature of Kentucky at its 1988 Regular Session, enacted 
House Bill 217 amending Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the “Act”), 
creating the “Kentucky Infrastructure Authority” to serve the public purposes identified in 
the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority, attached to the Governor’s Office, is charged pursuant 
to Section 224A.300 of the Act with coordinating the funding and implementation of 
infrastructure projects and to this end maintains the Water Resource Information System 
(the “WRIS”) a comprehensive database of community water and wastewater projects 
across Kentucky; and  
 
  WHEREAS, House Bill 1 of the 2022 Regular Session of the Kentucky General 
Assembly approved a $250,000,000 allocation in Federal Funds for Fiscal Year 2023 from 
the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021/Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund to the 
Authority for the Drinking Water and Wastewater Grant Program, known as the Kentucky 
Cleaner Water Program (the “CWP”), a portion of which funds are the subject of this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantee now seeks to acquire and construct a project as 
described in the Grantee’s Project Profile in the WRIS (the “Project”) and the Authority 
has determined that the Project meets the guidelines of the Cleaner Water Program and 
the directives of the General Assembly; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Authority desire to enter into this Agreement 
which sets forth their respective duties, rights, covenants, and obligations with respect to 
the acquisition and construction of the Project and the application of the proceeds of a 
grant from the Cleaner Water Program as administered by the Authority.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the grant hereby effected, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt, mutuality and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by 
the parties hereto, the Authority and the Grantee each agree as follows: 
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SECTION 1 – DEFINITIONS 
 
 All terms utilized herein shall have the same definitions and meaning as ascribed to 
them in the Act, which Act is hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference, the same 
as if set forth herein verbatim; provided, however, that those definitions utilized in the Act 
having general application are hereby modified in certain instances to apply specifically to 
the Grantee and its Project. 
 
 Act shall mean Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the 
“KRS”). 
  
 Agreement shall mean this Grant Assistance Agreement made and entered into 
by and between the Grantee and the Authority, as authorized by the Act, providing for a 
Grant to be made to the Grantee or its approved agent, subject to approval by the 
Authority. 
 
 Area Water Management Council shall mean the entity designated as the regional 
planning body for the respective counties within an Area Development District in Kentucky, 
which shall prepare and maintain an Area Water Management Plan, listing and prioritizing 
Project Profiles for water and wastewater projects within that region. 
 

Engineer(s) shall mean the professional engineer or firm of professional engineers 
properly procured in accord with KRS Chapter 45A and 2 CFR 200.317 through 2 CFR 
200.327 (where applicable), as amended, by the Grantee in connection with the Project, as 
identified in the WRIS Cleaner Water Program Database. 
 
 Exhibit shall refer to a specific document, or to the completion of a process or 
procedure to be accomplished as a prerequisite to release of funds to the Grantee by the 
Authority. 
 
 Grant shall mean that portion of the Kentucky CWP funds made available to the 
Commonwealth by the American Recovery Program Act and allocated by the Kentucky 
General Assembly in its 2022 Regular Session, which shall be incrementally transferred 
under this Agreement from the Commonwealth to the Grantee through Grant Number 
22CWW362 in the principal amount of $416,203 for the purpose of defraying the costs 
incidental to the Project. 
 
 Grantee shall mean any unit of local government, or its designated agent, as 
approved by the Authority, or any special purpose governmental entity within the 
Commonwealth eligible for funds under the CWP in accordance with the Act, now having 
been or hereafter being granted the funds for the Project; and for the purposes of this 
Agreement shall mean the Grantee identified on the front page of this Agreement. 
 
 Project shall mean, when used generally, a water, wastewater or other 
infrastructure project authorized pursuant to the Act, and when used in specific reference 
to the Grantee’s Project funded by the Authority through the CWP, it shall refer to that 
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project as described in the Grantee’s Project Profile in the WRIS, which has an 8 digit 
number following the designation WX or SX. 
 
 Project Administrator shall mean that individual designated in the Project Profile 
by that title, who has the capacity and responsibility of supervising the Project and 
coordinating the preparation of all related documentation on behalf of the Grantee with 
respect to the Project.  
  

Project Budget shall mean a list of Project expenses and funding sources, in the 
form set forth in the current Project Profile as set forth in the WRIS. 

 
Project Profile shall mean those specific details of the Project, presented by the 

Grantee to the respective Area Water Management Council for review and incorporation 
into the Area Water Management Plan and the WRIS. 

 
 System shall mean the utility system owned and operated by the Grantee or the 
agent of the Grantee, as approved by the Authority, to which the Project shall become a 
part, and any revenues generated by the Project, which are used to operate and maintain 
the utility system in the typical manner of a local public utility in Kentucky. 
 
 
SECTION 2 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
The Authority covenants and agrees, conditioned upon the timely performance by the 
Grantee of its respective obligations, to undertake the following obligations: 
 
A. The Authority shall review and approve Project related documentation provided by 

the Grantee. Once the Project is under construction, the Authority shall review 
requests for payment submitted for payment of costs of the Project. Any 
deficiencies found in said requests will be reported immediately to the Grantee. If 
there are no deficiencies in said requests or deficiencies have been resolved 
satisfactorily by the Grantee, the Authority will approve the requests and disburse 
grant funds to the Grantee in an amount not to exceed, cumulatively, the approved 
grant amount for the Project.  
 

B. The Authority will communicate and cooperate with the Grantee to best assist the 
Grantee in meeting its obligations set out in this Agreement. 
 

 
SECTION 3 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GRANTEE 
 
The Grantee covenants and agrees to undertake the following obligations:   
   
A. The Grantee shall complete and submit executed copies of all required Exhibits to 

the Authority, in accordance with the Conditional Commitment Letter instructions. 
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B. The Grantee may consider utilizing the option for partial funding set out in Section 
6, below. Over the course of the acquisition and construction of the Project, the 
Grantee shall provide such status reports as may be requested by the Authority, 
and once the Project is under construction submit periodic requests for payment 
to the Authority accompanied by copies of invoices for costs incurred in 
accordance with the Authority’s standard draw-down request format.   

 
C. The Grantee shall perform and/or cause to be performed all necessary acts 

consistent with all federal and state labor and procurement laws in connection with 
the planning, design, acquisition and construction of the Project, including: the 
proper procurement of land, easements and rights of way; professional services, 
including but not limited to architectural and engineering services; construction 
contractor(s) services; and the acquisition of necessary equipment and/or 
materials. 

 
D. The Grantee shall obtain and keep on file all required permits, licenses and 

approvals from the appropriate federal, state, and/or local governmental agencies 
prior to starting construction of the Project.  

 
E. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, executive 

orders, regulatory requirements, and policies relating to the planning and 
construction of the Project. 

 
F. The Grantee shall cooperate fully with the Authority and provide any 

documentation requested by the Authority in order to facilitate completing the 
obligations set out in this Agreement. 

 
G. The Grantee will proceed expeditiously to complete the Project in accordance with 

the approved final engineering plans and specifications or amendments thereto, 
prepared by the Project Engineer for the Grantee, if required and as approved by 
the Authority and other state and federal agencies, as appropriate.  

H. The Grantee agrees that throughout the reasonable life of the infrastructure 
facilities developed under the Project it will retain ownership of, operate, and 
maintain these facilities, and all appurtenances thereto, keeping them in good and 
sound repair and good operating condition at its own expense so that the 
completed Project will continue to provide the services for which it was designed. 
Change of ownership or disposal of the Project facilities during their useful life may 
occur only with written approval of the Authority. 

I. If the Grantee is a local unit of government, city or county, and determines that it 
is in the best interest of its citizens, it may enter into a memorandum of agreement 
with a Kentucky corporation to serve as its agent for the implementation and long-
term operation and management of the Project, subject to the Agreement. The 
form and content of such a memorandum of agreement is subject to the prior 
approval of the Authority. 
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J. General Compliance with all Duties. The Grantee shall faithfully and punctually 
perform all duties with reference to the System required by the American Rescue 
Plan Act of 2021, and by the terms and provisions of the Act, and this Assistance 
Agreement. 

K. Further Covenants under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The Grantee 
shall comply with all further requirements or conditions which may arise from time 
to time in order to assure compliance with the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, 
including but not limited to the following: 

1. Records Retention. The Grantee shall provide to the Authority access to all 
records related to the Project for review in determining compliance with this 
Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations, including the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021/Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund. The 
Grantee shall retain all records, including all invoices, relating to the Project for 
five (5) years after full execution of the Certificate of Completion.  

2. Single Audit Requirements. Grantees that expend more than $750,000 in 
Federal awards during their fiscal year will be subject to an audit under the 
Single Audit Act and its implementing regulation at 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F 
regarding audit requirements. Grantees may also refer to the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplements for audits of federal 
funds and related guidance and the Federal Audit Clearinghouse to see 
examples and single audit submissions.  

3. Civil Rights Compliance. The Grantee is required to meet legal requirements 
relating to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal funds. 
Those requirements include ensuring that entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from the U.S. Department of the Treasury do not deny benefits or 
services, or otherwise discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin 
(including limited English proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual 
orientation and gender identity), in accordance with the following authorities: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. 
2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 
22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), Public Law 93-
112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the 
Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, Public Law 94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department 
implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 23. 

L. General. The Grantee shall do and perform or cause to be done and performed all 
acts and things required to be done or performed by or on behalf of the Grantee 
under the provisions of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 and this Assistance 
Agreement in accordance with the terms of such provisions. 
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SECTION 4 - MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATIONS 
 
A. The parties agree that the funds granted by the Commonwealth to the Grantee are 

to be used solely for the purposes of the acquisition and construction of the Project. 
Further, the parties agree that the obligations imposed upon them are for their 
respective benefit and the timely fulfillment of the obligations set herein are 
necessary for the Project. 

 
B. Except as may otherwise be provided herein, the parties to this Agreement shall 

be solely responsible for any incidental costs incurred in fulfilling their respective 
obligations under this Agreement and neither party shall have any claim against 
the other party for reimbursement of incidental costs whether or not a party is in 
default. 
 

 
SECTION 5 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

 
A. This Agreement shall be valid only after both parties have duly signed and provided 

the executed document to the other. 
 
B. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause and may 

be terminated by either party without cause upon 30 days written notice to the 
other party. Termination of this Agreement shall not diminish or in any other 
manner affect any other remedy that may be available to the parties for any breach 
of the Agreement that occurs prior to the termination. 

 
C. If, after execution of this Agreement, additional financial assistance is found to be 

required for the acquisition and construction of the Project and the required 
additional assistance does or does not become available to the Grantee from any 
source, the Project may be modified so long as any change in scope and budget 
is mutually agreed to by the parties to this Agreement, and clearly documented in 
a revision of the Project Budget within the Project Profile.  

 
 

SECTION 6 - ADVANCE FUNDING FOR PROJECT PLANNING AND DESIGN 
 
A. The Grantee may request, in writing, that a portion of the grant funds be disbursed 

prior to Project bidding to pay up to 50% of the budgeted engineering fee for Project 
planning and design to the Project Engineer to expedite submission of the Project 
plans and specifications for review by the Kentucky Division of Water. The balance 
of the budgeted engineering fee for project planning and design may be paid only 
after approval of the plans by the Kentucky Division of Water. 

 
B. It is specifically understood and agreed by the Grantee in the event that the Project 

has not been advertised for bids within twenty-four (24) months from the date of 
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signing of this Agreement, for whatever reason, any funds disbursed for Project 
planning and design are subject to full and immediate repayment by the Grantee 
to the Authority.  

 
C. No funds shall be released under this Section until the requirements of Exhibits 1 

through 7 of this Agreement have been completed. 
 
 
SECTION 7. - EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 

Section 7.1. Events of Default Defined. 

The following will be “Events of Default” under this Agreement and the term “Event of 
Default” or “Default” will mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement, any one or more of 
the following events: 

A. Any unauthorized or improper expenditure of funds by the Grantee, or expenditure 
of funds by the Grantee other than in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

B. Failure by the Grantee to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement 
on its part to be observed or performed, other than as referred to in subsection (A) 
of this Section, for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such 
failure and requesting that it be remedied will have been given to the Grantee by 
the Authority unless the Authority agrees in writing to an extension of such time 
prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot 
be corrected within the applicable period, the Authority will not unreasonably 
withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by 
the Grantee within the applicable period and diligently pursued until such failure is 
corrected. 

C. The dissolution or liquidation of the Grantee, or the voluntary initiation by the 
Grantee of any proceeding under any federal or Kentucky law relating to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, arrangement, reorganization, readjustment of debt or any 
other form of debtor relief, or the initiation against the Grantee of any such 
proceeding which remain undismissed for sixty (60) days, or the entry by the 
Grantee into an agreement of composition with creditors or the failure generally by 
the Grantee to pay its debts as they become due. 

D. A default by the Grantee under the provisions of any agreements relating to its 
debt obligations. 
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Section 7.2. Remedies on Default. 

Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 7.1 has occurred and is continuing, 
the Authority may, without any further demand or notice, take one or any combination of 
the following remedial steps: 

A. Declare this Agreement void from the beginning without further obligation to the 
Grantee and may commence appropriate legal action to enforce its rights under 
this Agreement including action for recovery of funds expended hereunder. 

B. Terminate any remaining grant payments to the Grantee. 

C. Exercise all the rights and remedies of the Authority set forth in the Act. 

D. Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

E. Submit a formal referral to the appropriate federal agency. 

Section 7.3. No Remedy Exclusive. 

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Authority is intended to be exclusive, 
and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other remedy 
given hereunder and every remedy now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay 
or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default will impair any such 
right or power and any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as 
often as may be deemed expedient. 

Section 7.4. Consent to Powers of Authority Under Act. 

The Grantee hereby acknowledges to the Authority its understanding of the provisions of 
the Act, vesting in the Authority certain powers, rights and privileges in respect of the 
Project upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, and the Grantee hereby covenants 
and agrees that if the Authority should in the future have recourse to said rights and 
powers, the Grantee shall take no action of any nature whatsoever calculated to inhibit, 
nullify, void, delay or render nugatory such actions of the Authority in the due and prompt 
implementation of this Agreement. 

Section 7.5. Waivers. 

In the event that any agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and 
thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver will be limited to the particular breach 
so waived and will not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. 

Section 7.6. Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. 

In the event that either party hereto defaults under any of the provisions hereof and the 
non-defaulting party employs attorneys or incurs other expenses for the enforcement of 
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performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the defaulting 
party herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will pay on demand therefor to 
the non-defaulting party the fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred 
by the non-defaulting party. 

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. The Grantee may sign this Agreement electronically via a program subject to the 
approval by the Authority, or manually on a paper copy that is scanned to the 
portable document format (.pdf) and emailed to the Authority. Transmittal of all 
other correspondence or documentation, including the required Exhibits identified 
in the Attachment shall be scanned and attached as a file to email. The Authority 
and the Grantee, working through the Project Administrator, shall assist each other 
in securing and maintaining a complete, current Project document file for 
reference, records, and audit purposes. 

B. The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience and the terms 
contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the 
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

C. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of the successor and assigns, respectively, of the parties. Except for 
the limited use of a memorandum of agreement (as provided in Section 3 herein), 
this provision shall not be construed to permit an assignment by any party of any 
of its rights and duties under this Agreement which assignment shall be prohibited 
except with the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

D. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by a written instrument duly 
executed by each of the parties hereto. 

E. Timely and accurate performance of all actions by the respective parties are 
mutually recognized by the parties of this Agreement to be of importance to the 
citizens of the Commonwealth generally, and particularly to those citizens directly 
affected by the Project. 

F. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

G. The Authority may audit or review all documentation and records of the Grantee 
relating to this Project pursuant to the provisions of Section 45A.150 of the KRS or 
any other applicable federal or state law. 

H. The Grantee agrees that the Authority, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, 
the Auditor of Public Accounts, and the Legislative Research Commission, or their 
duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, 
papers, records, or other documentation or evidence, which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of financial audit or program review. 
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Furthermore, any books, documents, papers records, or other evidence provided 
to the Commonwealth, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of 
Public Accounts, or the Legislative Research Commission, which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement, shall be subject to public disclosure regardless of the 
proprietary nature of the information, unless specific information is identified and 
exempted and agreed to by the Secretary of the Finance and Administration 
Cabinet as meeting the provisions of KRS 61.878(1)(c) prior to the execution of 
this  Agreement. The Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet shall 
not restrict the public release of any information which would otherwise be subject 
to public release if a state government agency was providing the services. 

I. During the performance of this contract, the Grantee agrees to the following 
Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200 contract provisions, as amended: 

Equal Employment Opportunity 

1. The Grantee will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or national origin. The Grantee will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited 
to the following:  

a. Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

b. The Grantee will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 
by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

c. The Grantee will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or 
applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of 
the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision 
shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the 
compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of 
such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such 
other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have 
access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 
formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, 
hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or 
is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 
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d. The Grantee will send to each labor union or representative of workers with 
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or 
workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section 
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment. 

e. The Grantee will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of 
the Secretary of Labor. 

f. The Grantee will furnish all information and reports required by Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders 
of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his 
books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

g. In the event of the Grantee's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, 
this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part, 
and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further government 
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 
law. 

h. The Grantee will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding 
paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding 
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including 
sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a 
Grantee becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering 
agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

All contracts that are in excess of $100,000 and involve the employment of 
mechanics or laborers must include provisions requiring compliance with the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act as follows: 
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1. Overtime requirements: No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part 
of the Agreement work which may require or involve the employment of 
laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in 
any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess 
of forty hours in such a workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of 
pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such a workweek.  

2. Violation: liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any 
violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, the contractor 
and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. 
In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or 
a territory, to such District or to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer 
or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.  

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The Grantee shall upon 
its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys 
payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under 
any such contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contractor, 
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums 
as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.  

4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts 
the clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a 
clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower-tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower-tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 
paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

Clean Air Act  

1. The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 
7401 et seq.  

2. The Grantee agrees to report each violation to the Authority and understands 
and agrees that the Authority will, in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate 
Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  
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3. The Grantee agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan 
Act funding. 

 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act  

1. The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.  

2. The Grantee agrees to report each violation to the Authority and understands 
and agrees that the Authority will, in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to the Treasury Department and the appropriate 
Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  

3. The Grantee agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with American Rescue Plan 
Act funds. 

Debarment and Suspension 

Contracts shall not be awarded to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM) listed at www.sam.gov.  

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the 
required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not 
used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing 
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of 
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. 
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the recipient. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 
  

http://www.sam.gov/
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their respective duly authorized officials as of the day and year above written. 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE 
AUTHORITY 

By:-----------­
Sandy Williams, Executive Director 

Date: -----------

SOUTH EASTERN WATER ASSOCIATION 
INC 

Print Name: 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXAMINED 
BY: 

By:-----------­
LEGAL COUNSEL TO THE KENTUCKY 

INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
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Mortgages Securing RD Debt 

 





































































 

 

 

Exhibit 18 

Outstanding Debt  

&  

Interest Paid Year-Ending December 31, 2024  
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SOUTH  EASTERN  WATER  ASSOCIATION,  INC. 

Existing Long-Term Debt 

 

RD  United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development. 

KRWFC Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation.    

Although the 2015C note was issued by KRWFC, this note is now held 

by Rural Water Financing Agency, the successor to KRWFC. 

 

 

Description  

of 

Debt 

Lending 

Agency 

Date 

of 

Issue 

Original 

Principal 

Amount 

Maturity 
Interest 

Rate 

Outstanding 

Principal 

Balance 

Loan 

91-22 
RD 09-17-04 $1,833,000 09-17-44 4.50% $1,239,290 

Loan 

91-24 
RD 11-08-06 $2,754,000 11-08-46 4.375% $2,001,611 

Loan 

91-26 
RD 02-02-11 $3,995,000 02-02-51 2.375% $3,007,517 

2015C 

Loan 
KRWFC 03-10-15 $2,980,000 01-01-41 

3.00% 

to 

4.25% 

 

$1,535,000 

Loan 

91-28 
RD 05-14-20 $2,196,000 05-14-60 1.875% $1,943,483 

Loan 

91-30 
RD 05-14-20 $   500,000 05-14-61 1.875% $  434,478 

Loan 

91-32 
RD 12-17-24 $   504,328 12-17-64 1.75% $  495,528 

Note: Outstanding Principal Balances as of October 31, 2025            TOTAL: $10,656,907 
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SOUTH  EASTERN  WATER  ASSOCIATION,  INC. 

Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2024 

 
Description 

of 

Debt 

Lending 

Agency 

Original 

Principal 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 
Interest Paid 

FY 2024 

Loan 

91-22 
RD $1,833,000 4.50% $57,598 

Loan 

91-24 
RD $2,754,000 4.375% $89,106 

Loan 

91-26 
RD $3,995,000 2.375% $73,397 

2015C 

Loan 
KRWFC $2,980,000 

3.00% 

to 

4.25% 

 

 

$67,478 

Loan 

91-28 
RD $2,196,000 1.875% $37,122 

Loan 

91-30 
RD $   500,000 1.875%      $  8,720 

Loan 

91-32 
RD $   504,328 1.75% $ 6,327 

Interest Paid FY Ending December 31, 2024                         Total:      $339,748 

 



 

 

 

Exhibit 19 

Income Statement & Balance Sheet  

12-Months Ending September 30, 2025 

 











 

 

 

Exhibit 20 

Acquired Property by USoA Account Number 

 



   

 

 

Detailed Estimate of Acquired Property Classified According  

To The Uniform System of Accounts for  

Class A/B Water Districts and Associations 

 

South Eastern Water Association, Inc 

U. S. 27 Water Line Replacement Project 

 

 

Account 

No. 
Account Description Estimate 

331 Transmission and Distribution Mains $1,105,164 

   

   

 TOTAL $1,105,164 
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2024 Audited Financial Statement 

 



rrn 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 

Audited Financial Statements 
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

7 



PRI 

CONTENTS 

PEI 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Financial Statements: 

Statements of Financial Position 

Statements of Activities 

Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

mr, 
Statement of Functional Expenses-2024 

fw, Statement of Functional Expenses-2023 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Supplemental Information: 

Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and On Compliance And Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Gudiance 

PIA Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
mei 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Pages 

1-3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10-19 

20-21 

22-24 

25 

26 

27 



Randall D. Turpin, CPA, PLLC 
225 Parkers Mill Road 

Somerset, Kentucky 42501 

Phone: 606-451-1550 
Fax: 606-451-0194 
Email: rdt1869@aol.com 

PAM 

Pon 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

owl To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Somerset, Kentucky 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. (a 
non-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 
2023, and the related statements of activities, changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Southeastern Water Association, Inc., as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my 
report. I am required to be independent of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. and to meet my other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 



zwi To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Page 2 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial 
statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, I: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that I identified during the audit. 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Page 3 

MM. 

Supplementary Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2, U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 

TIM from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements 
or the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the schedule of expenditures 

?PM of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated August 12, 
2025, on my consideration of Southeastern Water Association. Inc.'s internal control over financial 
reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

August 12, 2025 
Somerset, Kentucky 



Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Plurt 
Assets 

Current Assets 

2024 2023 

Cash and cash equivalents 401,412 $ 382,914 
IMR Certificates of deposit 1,249,098 1,761,707 

Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $26,970 and $27,801 
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively) 358,310 369,350 

Inventory 254,890 370,087 
Prepaid expenses 79,933 75,907 
Total current assets 2,343,643 2,959,965 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 50,358,506 47,48I,195 
Accumulated depreciation (21,055,896) (20,009,553) 

Mal Net property, plant and equipment 29,302,610 27,471,642 

Other Assets 
Restricted cash accounts 1,479,527 1,352,881 
Total other assets 1,479,527 1,352,881 

Total Assets $ 33,125,780 $ 31,784,488 
MP, 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Fri Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 176,640 $ 320,317 
Accrued liabilities 23,695 39,840 

1201 Accrued interest payable 46,564 47,989 
Customer deposits 174,458 157,006 
Advance tap-on fees 5,735 8,235 

f=1" 
Current portion of long-term debt 415,597 394,387 
Total current liabilities 842,689 967,774 

furl 

Long-term Liabilities 
Long-term debt 11,072,504 10,966,029 
Net of current portion (415,597) (394,387) 
Total long-term liabilities 10,656,907 10,571,642 

ft8 4 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets, Without Donor Restrictions 

11,499,596 11,539,416 

Reserved by contract 1,352,881 1,352,881 
Reserved by board 1,120,000 1,120,000 

fmq 

Membership fees 
Tap-on fees 

167,386 
3,793,863 

163,536 
3,620,703 

Unrestricted, other 15,192,054 13,987,952 

Total net assets 21,626,184 20,245,072 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 33,125,780 $ 31,784,488 

Mai 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
4 

f=1 



Southeastern Water Association, 
Statements of Activities 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 

Operating increases in net assets without donor restrictions 

Inc. 

and 2023 

2024 2023 

Water sales $ 5,026,345 $ 4,713,362 
Sal 

Service charges/reconnect fees 27,791 20,211 

Other income 1,805 23,526 

Total 5,055,941 4,757,099 
!WI 

Operating decreases in net assets without donor restrictions 

rAn 
Cost of water sold 
Depreciation 

1,669,955 
1,300,498 

1,460,185 
1,216,498 

Wages 660,394 615,025 

Maintenance 76,832 69,384 
Fig Supplies 158,235 108,892 

Insurance 207,415 226,619 
Other general and administrative 14,725 14,628 
Auto and truck 92,477 74,035 
Pension plan expense 25,972 42,670 
Bank charges 56 
PSC fees 7,227 8,007 
Utilities 116,932 119,433 
Telephone 8,052 8,158 
Testing and analysis 15,725 16,530 
Customer billing 66,689 47,870 
Directors' fees 40,000 42,000 
Office expense 77,417 28,275 
Bad debt 5,499 21,017 
Uniforms/laundry 9,752 10,062 
Professional services 84,212 64,285 
Tax and license 58,274 55,898 

cm) 

Total 4,696,338 4,249,471 

Operating increase in net assets without donor restrictions 359,603 507,628 

Non-operating increases (decreases) in net assets 
without donor restrictions 
Capital contributions - federal grants 805,240 163,131 
Gain(Loss) on sale of assets 248,732 21,607 
Employee retention credit received 260,294 
Membership fees collected 3,850 4,460 
Tap-on fees collected, net of amounts refunded 173,160 161,400 
Interest income 130,275 94,683 
Interest expense (339,748) (313,960) 

Total 1,021,509 391,615 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions $ 1,381,112 $ 899,243 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
5 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Without Donor Restrictions 

Reserved by 
Contract 

Reserved by 
board 

Membership 
Fees 

Tap-on 
Fees Other Total 

Balances, January 1, 2023 $ 1,321,955 $ 1,120,000 $ 159,076 $ 3,459,303 $ 13,285,495 $ 19,345,829 

2023 change in net assets 4,460 161,400 733,383 899,243 

Transfers 30,926 (30,926) 

Balances, December 31, 2023 $ 1,352,881 $ 1,120,000 $ 163,536 $ 3,620,703 $ 13,987,952 $ 20,245,072 

2024 change in net assets 3,850 173,160 1,204,102 1,381,112 

Transfers 126,646 (126,646) 

Balances, December 31, 2024 $ 1,479,527 $ 1,120,000 $ 167,386 $ 3,793,863 $ 15,065,408 $ 21,626,184 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
6 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended December 31, 2024 

Mal 

Program 
General and 

Administrative Total 

C.1 Cost of water sold $ 1,669,955 $ $ 1,669,955 
Depreciation 1,237,891 62,607 1,300,498 
Wages 521,209 139,185 660,394 

fgln Maintenance 76,832 76,832 
Supplies 158,235 158,235 
Insurance 179,875 27,540 207,415 

ram Other general and administrative 14,725 14,725 
Auto and truck 92,477 92,477 

mim 
Pension plan expense 
Bank charges 

20,498 5,474 
56 

25,972 
56 

PSC fees 7,227 7,227 

fml 
Utilities 104,377 12,555 116,932 
Telephone 8,052 8,052 
Testing and analysis 15,725 15,725 

sm Customer billing 81,434 81,434 
Directors' fees 40,000 40,000 
Office expense 62,672 62,672 

mm Bad debt 5,499 5,499 
Uniforms/laundry 9,752 9,752 
Professional services 84,212 84,212 

ram Tax and license 47,229 11,045 58,274 

$ 4,228,215 $ 468,123 $ 4,696,338 
PM 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
7 



CPI Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

ran 

Cost of water sold 

Program 
General and 

Administrative Total 

$ 1,460,185 $ $ 1,460,185 

Depreciation 1,198,990 17,508 1,216,498 

Wages 491,430 123,595 615,025 

Maintenance 69,384 69,384 

Supplies 108,892 108,892 

Insurance 203,484 23,135 226,619 
Rig Other general and administrative 14,628 14,628 

Auto and truck 74,035 74,035 

mg, 
Pension plan expense 
Bank charges 
PSC fees 

34,095 

8,007 

8,575 42,670 

8,007 
Utilities 110,849 8,584 119,433 
Telephone 8,158 8,158 
Testing and analysis 16,530 16,530 
Customer billing 47,870 47,870 
Directors' fees 42,000 42,000 
Office expense 28,275 28,275 
Bad debt 21,017 21,017 
Uniforms/laundry 10,062 10,062 
Professional services 64,285 64,285 

Fa.1 Tax and license 45,907 9,991 55,898 

$ 3,900,737 $ 348,734 $ 4,249,471 

Pal 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
8 



Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Cash flows from operating activities 
2024 2023 

Operating income/loss $ 359,603 $ 507,628 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 1,300,498 1,216,498 
Bad debts 5,499 21,017 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

Inventory 115,197 (225,258) 
Accounts receivable 5,541 (42,133) 
Prepaid expenses (4,026) 5,060 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Accounts payable (143,677) (29,363) 
Accrued liabilities (16,144) 17,587 
Accrued interest (1,425) (10,709) 
Advance tap on fees (2,500) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,618,566 1,460,327 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest income 130,275 94,683 

Pr% 
Redemption of (investment in) certificates of deposits 512,609 (734,399) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 272,625 25,000 
Cash payments for the purchase and construction of fixed assets (3,155,360) (2,250,341) 

1=4 

Net cash used by investing activities (2,239,851) (2,865,057) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest expense (339,748) (313,960) 
Proceeds from federal grants 805,240 163,131 
Employee retention credit received 260,294 

Iron 
Increase in customer deposits 17,452 21,881 
Proceeds from tap-on and membership fees 177,010 165,860 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 504,328 

rwt Principal payment on long-term debt (397,853) (385,518) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 766,429 (88,312) 
Fnl 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 145,144 (1,493,042) 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash beginning of year 1,735,795 3,228,837 

Pei 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash end of year $ 1,880,939 $ 1,735,795 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 341,173 $ 348,149 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
9 



Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization and Nature of Activities 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc. (the Association) was formed as a result of an order by the 
Public Service Commission of Kentucky which required the merger of Nelson Valley Water 
Association, Inc., Tateville Water Association, Inc., Elihu-Rush Branch Water Association, Inc., and 
Barnesburg Water Association, Inc. The Association purchases water from the City of Somerset 
Water Service and distributes the water to residents of the Nelson Valley, Tateville, Elihu-Rush 
Branch, and Barnesburg areas of Pulaski County, Kentucky. The Association falls under the 
oversight and regulations of the Kentucky Public Service commission and accordingly follows their 
prescribed uniform System of Accounts. 

Method of Accounting 

The Association prepares its financial statements on the accrual method of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when earned, rather than when received and expenses are recognized when 
incurred rather than when paid. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The Association prepares its financial statements in accordance with FASB ASC 958, Not for Profit 
Entities. Under FASB ASC 958, the Association is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, net assets of the Association and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not 
subject to donor-imposed stipulation, even though their use may be limited in other respects, such as 
by contract or by board designation. 

furl 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or 

r., other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where 
the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. There were no donor-imposed 
restrictions of a temporary or perpetual nature at December 31, 2024 or 2023. Donor-imposed 

(.9 restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when 
the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. When a 
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 

Pal 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

PM 
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1ml Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues from sales of water, service charges/reconnect fees, and tap-on fees for new service 
addresses are exchange transactions and are recognized in the period in which the water is provided to 
the customer or meters installed. The Association's sales are delivered daily as customers use water 
at which time ownership, risks, and rewards transfer. At the end of the month, customer usage is 

rs.‘ measured and billed. Control of water transfers to the customer as they consume it. In 2024 and 
2023, the Association recognized revenue from sales to customers, net of sales and utility taxes and 
refunds/adjustments, totaling $5,026,3451 and $4,713,362, respectively. Grant income is recognized 
as revenues as various conditions are met, and then reflected as contributed capital in the Statement of 
Net Assets. 

Credit risk 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Association to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Association places its cash deposits 
with high credit quality financial institutions and generally limits the amount of credit exposure by 
using multiple institutions and requiring collateral pledges. Concentrations of credit risk with respect 

fir to trade receivables are limited due to the Association's large number of customers with individually 
small, immaterial balances. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 

The statement of cash flows classifies changes in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash according 
to operating, investing or financing activities. The Association considers cash on hand, cash in banks 
and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less, both restricted and 
unrestricted, to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents on the statement of cash 
flows includes amounts classified as cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash on the statement of 

pal financial position. 

Contract Accounts Receivable 
Fri 

The Association extends credit to substantially all of its customers. Accounts receivable are stated at 
the face amount of the water bills, which approximates fair market value. The timing of revenue 
recognition, billings, and cash collections results in billed accounts receivable on the statement of 
financial position. Amounts are billed at the end of every month based on customer usage. Total 
usage determines the rate at which a customer is billed per unit. Payment is due within 10 days. 

fm9 Penalties are imposed 10 days after the payment due date on unpaid balances. 

11 



tW1 Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Contract Accounts Receivable, continued 

Customers may request adjustment for leaks, up to a maximum of 90 days, once per year, or to 
pat, correct errors from meter reading. The Association recognizes revenue sales in the amount it expects 

to be entitled, that is, net of estimated adjustments. Based on past experience, the Association does 
not anticipate a significant amount of adjustments and, therefore, has not accrued an adjustment 
liability. 

Allowance for Credit Losses 

The Association operates in the water utility industry and its accounts receivables are primarily 
derived from individual and commercial customers. At each balance sheet date, the Association 
recognizes an expected allowance for credit losses. In addition, also at each reporting date, this 
estimate is updated to reflect any changes in credit risk since the receivable was initially recorded. 
The estimate is calculated on a pooled basis where similar risk characteristics exist. 

The allowance estimate is derived from a review of the Association's historical losses based on the 
aging of receivables. This estimate is adjusted for management's assessment of current conditions, 
reasonable and supportable forecasts regarding future events, and any other factors deemed relevant 
by the Association. The Association believes historical loss information is a reasonable starting point 
in which to calculate the expected allowance for credit losses as the Association's portfolio segments 
have remained constant since the Association's inception. 

The Association writes off receivables when there is information that indicates the debtor is facing 
significant financial difficulty and there is no possibility of recovery. If any recoveries are made from 
any accounts previously written off; they will be recognized in accordance with the entity's 
accounting policy election. The total amount of write offs was $5,499 and $21,017 for the years 
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Inventory 

Inventory of the Association consists of supplies and materials for Association use. This inventory is 
valued at first-in, first-out cost, which approximates market. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost. The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives 
are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed using straight line over estimated useful lives ranging 
from 5 to 40 years. Depreciation is calculated on construction projects once completed and placed in 
service. 

12 
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Advance Tap-On Fees 

The Association allows potential customers to pay tap-on fees in advance of construction of lines. 
rari Amounts paid in advance remain payable back to the customer until they receive water service. Upon 

receipt of water service, the tap-on fee is reclassified to Net Assets — Tap-On-Fees. 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

FRI Membership Fees 

The Association requires all customers to be members of the Association by paying a one-time 
r.L1 nonrefundable fee of $10. 

Mgt 

Grants 

Grants received by the Association that are used to offset the acquisition, improvement or 
construction costs of the Association's property, facilities, water distribution system, or equipment 
used to provide utility services to the public are recorded as non-operating revenue. Grant revenues 
are transferred at year end to the equity account Net Assets, Without Donor Restrictions — Other. 

Functional Expenses 

The Association's functional expense policy is to allocate all direct costs of providing water as well 
as a portion of salaries and related payroll expenses to program services. The salaries and related 

MCI payroll costs attributed to program services are allocated using a percentage based on the relative time 
spent by the affected employees on each function. The Association incurs no fund raising expense. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 

owl in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, net position and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 

rob reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Comparability 

Certain prior year amounts have been restated to conform to current year presentation. The 
restatements had no effect on the change in net assets for either period. 

13 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, concluded 

Income Tax Status 

The Association is a nonprofit organization, exempt under Internal Revenue Section 501(c)(12). No 
income tax is applicable due to the Association's tax exempt status. The Association is not aware of 
any uncertain income tax positions as of December 31, 2024 for any open tax years. 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported 
within the statement of financial position that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in the 
statement of cash flows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash accounts included in other assets 

$ 401,412 
1A79,527

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 1,880,939 

Amounts included in restricted cash represent those required to be set aside by covenants of various 
debt agreements with Rural Development as well as customer deposits held. 

3. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Association held deposits at multiple banks. Accounts at each institution are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Cash at three institutions exceeded 
FDIC insured limits. The amounts in excess of the FDIC limit totaled $1,258,347 and $550,911 at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively. At December 31, 2024, all of the excess amount, except 
for $618,406 was collateralized with securities held in the name of the financial institution and 
pledged to the Association. At December 31, 2023, all of the excess amount was collateralized with 
securities held in the name of the financial institution and pledged to the Association. Securities 
cannot be moved or redeemed without prior approval of the Association. 

4. Contract Balances 

The contract balances were as follows: 

Accounts receivable 

14 

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 1/1/2023 

$358,310 $369,350 $348,234 



Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

5. Property and Equipment 

The cost of property and equipment at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

2024 2023 
Transmission and distribution system $ 45,446,002 $ 42,855,285 
Construction work in process 145,743 2,451,089 
Buildings and equipment 4,535,689 1,943,749 

Oa 

Land and land rights (nondepreciable) 231,072 231,072 
Property and equipment 50,358,506 47,481,195 
Less accumulated depreciation (21,055,896) (20,009,553) 

MeV 
Property and equipment, net $ 29,102,610 $ 27,471,642 

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Association completed a project to replace and extend 
water lines and construct/rehab pump stations in the KY192/KY1003 area. The project was funded 
by two Rural Development loans at a total of $2,696,000 and two Rural Development grants at a total 
of $659,000. $3,459,699 was expended on the project in total, including capitalized interest. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Association completed a project to replace pump 
stations in the Rush Branch and Tateville areas. The project was funded in house with funds 
available. $800,800 was expended on the project in total. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Association completed a project to build a new office 
Fml for the Association/s operations. The project was funded in house with funds available. $2,655,603 

was expended on the project in total. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Association completed a project to build a new water cal 
storage tank in the Dixie Bend area. The project was funded by a $504,328 Rural Development Loan 
and $659,497 of United States Department of the Treasury Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds through the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Cleaner Water Program. $1,172,277 
was expended on the project in total. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Association began a project to replace water lines in 
the Eagle's Nest area. The total expected project cost is $457,823. This project is to be funded by 
$416,203 of United States Department of the Treasury Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds through the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Cleaner Water Program and the remainder with 
funds on hand. As of December, 31, 2024, $145,743 had been expended on the project. 

6. Line of Credit 

The Association obtained a line of credit from a local bank for the Dixie Bend Tank Replacement 
Project. The total amount of the line of credit is $622,000. The line of credit matures in November, 
2025 and bears interest at 6.5% which can vary depending on fluctuations in the prime rate. The line 
of credit is secured by a certificate of deposit. The balance on the line was $0 at December 31, 2024. 

15 



Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

7. Long-Term Liabilities 

Loans from Rural Development (RD) financed installation of distribution mains and water lines. 
Real estate and revenue sufficient to fund the annual debt service secure the loans. During 2015, a 
group of these loans were refinanced through Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation into a 2015 
Series Revenue Bonds at an interest savings. 

The balances on the Association's loans/bonds are as follows: 

Interest variable revenue bonds dated March 8, 2015, 
payable in annual installments, including interest 
through February, 2041. 

2.375% loan dated February 2, 2011 payable in 
annual installments of $160,799, including interest, 
through February 2, 2051. 

4.375% loan dated November 8, 2006, payable in 
annual installments of $149,956, including interest 
through November 8, 2046. 

4.5% loan dated September 17, 2004, payable in 
annual installments of $101,567, including interest, 
through September 17, 2044. 

1.875% loan dated May 14, 2020, payable in annual 
installments of $78,529, including interest, through 
May 14, 2060. 

1.875% loan dated May 14, 2020, payable in 
annual installments of $17,880, including interest, 
through May 14, 2060. 

1.75% loan dated December 17, 2024, payable in 
monthly installments of $17,556, including interest, 
through December 17, 2064. 

Less current portion 

2024 2023 . 

$ 1,700,000 $ 1,860,000 

3,094,917 3,181,102 

2,062,611 2,120,948 

1,283,290 1,326,227 

1,983,718 2,024,647 

443,640 453,105 

504,328 
$ 11,072,504 $ 10,966,029 

(415,597) (394,387) 
$ 10,656,907 $ 10,571,642 

The Association executed a supplementary agreement with RD in which payments are made in 
monthly installments at an amount that is adequate to cover the annual requirements of all outstanding 
loans. 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

7. Long-Term Liabilities, continued 

The following table shows estimated maturities of all long-term debt at December 31, 2024: 

2025 $ 415,597 
2026 428,379 
2027 441,480 
2028 454,802 
2029 438,445 
Later years 8,893,801 

$11,072,504 

The Association capitalizes interest incurred during construction projects as a component on 
construction costs at the end of the construction project. Interest in the amount of $0 and $23,480 
was capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. 

Interest incurred on all debt during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $339,748 
and $348,149, respectively. 

8. Special Funds and Restrictions 

0.) The debt agreements with Rural Development require the following accounts be maintained by the 
Association as long as any outstanding debt remains; 

General account — All operating funds received shall be deposited in this account. Funds will be used 
for operating and maintenance expenses and will be transferred to other accounts as needed. 

Depreciation reserve account — The Association is required to make monthly deposits into this 
account as provided by the letter of conditions from RD. Ten percent of each loan is required to be 
deposited into this account over a period of ten years. These funds may be used for debt service or 
for unusual repairs or improvements if proper approvals are obtained and no funds are available in the 
general account. The balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $911,007 and $845,412, 
respectively, which met all required RD covenants for the full amount for all outstanding debt issues. 

Debt service reserve account — Monthly deposits are required to be made into this account. Funds are 
to be used to make payments on Rural Development loans. The account was established per Rural 
Development loan requirements. The balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $4,336 and 
$4,714, respectively. 

PEW 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

8. Special Funds and Restrictions, concluded 
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Short lived assets reserve account — Monthly deposits are required to commence in January 2014 into 
this account as provided by the letter of conditions for loan 26. These funds may be used to replace 
short lived assets used in the normal course of business at the discretion of the Association. The 
balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $150,419 and $133,848, respectively, which met all 
required RD covenants. 

The bond agreement with Regions Bank requires monthly deposits to be made into a sinking account. 
These deposits are to set aside funds for the semi-annual payments on the 2015 bond issue. The 
balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $220,756 and $211,439, respectively. 

Customer deposits received by the Association are required to be set aside in an account to be used 
for final billing amounts with any excess, including interest earned, returned to customers when they 
terminate service. The balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $186,274 and $156,969, 
respectively. 

9. Related-Party Transactions 

The Association paid $40,000 and $42,000 in 2024 and 2023, respectively, for board of director's 
fees. The Association purchases insurance from a company in which a board member's brother is a 
stockholder. 

10. Retirement Plan 

The Association adopted a simple employee pension plan (SEP) in 1999. This discretionary plan 
covers substantially all employees. The Association contributes 3% of gross wages for qualifying 
employees, plus additional amounts as periodically approved by the Board. During 2024 and 2023 

ove the Association made plan contributions of $25,972 and $42,670, respectively. 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

11. Liquidity and Availability 

The Association has not adopted a formal liquidity management plan. The Association continually 
reviews its financial assets and assesses if these assets are sufficient to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures. Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor restrictions 
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of the 
following: 

2024 2023 
Financial assets, at December 31, 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,880,939 $1,735,795 
Certificates of deposit 1,249,098 1,761,707 
Accounts receivable, net 358,310 369,350 

Total financial assets 3,488,347 3,866,852 
Less: amounts restricted for certain purposes (1,479,527) (1,352,881) 

Total $ 2,008,820 $2,513,971 

Normal operating expenses per month are, on average, approximately $390,000 to $360,000 for the 
years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. 

12. Legal Contingencies 

The Association is involved in legal proceedings regarding property damage claims. These matters 
are subject to inherent uncertainties, and the ultimate outcome or any possible range of loss are not 
determinable at this time. The Association intends to contest these matters vigorously. 

13. Subsequent Events 

The Association has evaluated and considered the need to recognize or disclose subsequent events 
through August 12, 2025, which represents the date that these financial statements were available to 

(.4 be issued. Subsequent events past this date, as they pertain to the year ended December 31, 2024, 
have not been evaluated by the Association. 
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Randall D. Turpin, CPA, PLLC 
225 Parkers Mill Road 

Somerset, Kentucky 42501 

Phone: 606-451-1550 
Fax: 606-451-0194 
Email: rdt1869@aol.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Somerset, Kentucky 

rml 

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. (a 
non-profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 3 I, 2024, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated August 12, 2025. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
rig 

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

F.1 
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To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Page 2 

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

efE.n Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 

mom an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

a)A-, PU-C-

August 12, 2025 
Somerset, Kentucky 

PM, 

PE, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Somerset, Kentucky 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

I have audited Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2024. Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In my opinion, Southeastern Water Association, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

nq Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). My responsibilities under those standards and Uniform 
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of my report. 

I am required to be independent of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. and to meet my other ethical 
Met 

responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe that the audit 
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. My audit does not provide a legal determination of Southeastern Water Association, 
Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Page 2 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc.'s federal programs. 

ran 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s compliance based on my audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always 
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 

fawn influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, I: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
Identify and assess the risk of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
Obtain an understanding of Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southeastern Water Association, 
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 
over compliance that I identified during the audit. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Page 3 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 

MIKA deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

My audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

August 12, 2025 
Somerset, Kentucky 

MM. 
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Passed through Rural Economic and Community Development 

Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 
RUS Loan 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. Department of the Treasury 
Passed through Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

Kentucky Cleaner Water Program 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Total federal awards expended 

Federal 
Assistance 

Listing 
Number 

Pass Through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

10.760 99934 

21.027 
21.027 
21.027 

25 

22CWW306 
22CWW348 
22CWW362 

Program 
or Award 
Amount 

$622,000 

$285,606 
$373,891 
$416,203 

Passed 
Through to Total Federal 

Subrecipients Expenditures 

$ 504,328 

$ 504,328 

$ 285,606 

$ 373,891 

$ 145,743 

$ 805,240 

$1,309,568 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

I. Basis of Presentation 

flmil 

2. 
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3. 

4. 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended December 31, 2024. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net 
position, or cash flows of Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized 
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Indirect Cost Rates 

The Association did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimis cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

Outstanding Loan Balance 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc.'s federal awards consist of grant and loan funds which were used 
for construction projects. Current year expenditures are included in the federal expenditures presented 
in the schedule as required by the Compliance Supplement issued by the Office of Management and 
Budget. As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding balance of the loans associated with the projects was 
$9,372,504. 
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Southeastern Water Association, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of Southeastern 
Water Association, Inc. were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were 
identified during the audit of the financial statements. 

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Southeastern Water Association, 
Inc. were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements. 

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over major federal awards programs 
were identified during the audit. 

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southeastern Water 
Association, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

There were no audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 
200.516(a). 

The programs tested as major are as follows: 

Name of Federal Program Federal Assistance Listing Number 

U.S. Department of the Treasury Coronavirus State and 
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs was $750,000. 

Southeastern Water Association, Inc. was determined not to be a low-risk auditee. 

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements 
1. None 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 
1. None 

D. Prior Audit Findings 
1. None 
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